




WHO WE ARE

PG Barry Brands is leading developer and

marketer ef accessories lifestyle brands and

products that provide fashion and function for

great life

The C.omoany currently offers products in three

distinct segments of the accessories universe

footwear handbags and foot and shoe care

Our products are sold throughout North America

and in select international markets by national

chain stores mass merchandisers warehouse

clubs better and midtier department stores

nonpromotional independent and specialty

retailers boutiques catalogs home shopping

networks and Online retailers

We consistently are topquartile performer

among accessories companies Publicly traded

since 1962 our common shares are listed on The

NASDAO Global Market under the symbol OFT

Accessory Footwear

Known for delivering trendright products that

offer the ultimate in comfort our flagship

Dearfoamc brand is the worlds besGknown name

in slippers Dearfoams lineage can be traced hack

to the original foamcushioned washable slipper

pioneered by our Company in 1947 More than 65

years and billiomplus pairs later pekple still love

the exceptional comfort style and quality found in

each pair of Dearfoams

Handbags Tote Bags Trav Products

Our baggallinT brand has become leader in creating

incredibly organized fashionable handbags tote

bags and travel accessories that make order beautiful

Founded in 1995 and added to our portfolio in March

2011 baggallini has history of consistent profitable

growth The brand is known for distinctive color

palottes fun fabrics and lightweiçht materials that are

especially popular with those seeking functional and

fun4ocarry tote wallet messençer and cosmetic/

jewelry organizer bags Our bag coalition grew during

fiscal 2013 with the strategic acquisitions cf the KIVA

travel and tote bag and Mosey handbag brands

Comfort nserts

Foot PetalsC develo.per of the origihal designer shoe

cushion rOarkets more than 20 unique products

accessories and kits that provide women with stylish

yet invisible solutions to co.mmon problems cau.sed

by wearing their favorite shoes This growing niche

brand was introduced in 2001 and became part of the

PG Barry family of brands in January 2011 All Foot

Petals brand cushions carry the Seal of Acceptance

of the American Podiatric Medical Association

PG Barry Corporation is based suburban

Columbus OH with locations in New York City

Bentonville AR Glen Pock NJ Milwaukie OR and

Dongguan City Nanjing and Shenzhen PRC

i.i .\ i.i



PG Barry Brands report.e.c.I sotd performance in

Pcl 2013 which genensted an 000rahng pront

in e.xcess of 14% as percentage of net sales and

once again placed us amonq the besootclass

in the accessories business Th.e achievement oh

objectves ssrt Ionn in orsr fiscal 2013 operafln elan

have allorved us to continue movhna toward our

oal ot oecomng $20013o-$2f30 million business

wntnnni the naxt several years

The Canspa nys performance last year is test
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To briefly recao our consolidatosl ooerat/g results

net earninos svore off 8B% vssrsus fiscal 2012 at

$13.3 milton or $315 per dilureo share net sales

svere approxincately $1400 millS ore 7% below

prior years record revenus results gross profit

a5 pemont of net sales svas up 40 basis oolnts

year-over-year at 435% and SOB/s expenses were

$43.0 mOwn or 2102.13 of nrrt sales dorvn sliontlv

vrsrsus fiscai 2012

On the year-end bolance sheet cash and eouiva-

lents inventory arrd debt all were prssorsrl alignool

to allow os to opecate ehficiently and continue to

suoport our strategies for grosvth Net shareholcl

ers eguity nose appnoxinsately 17% during fiscal

2013 to $802 million dividends svere incmased by

1O.S to $0.38 cents per share on an annual basis

and cur shana price on NASI2AO appnaciatad by

nearly 20% year-over-year

Efforts to align our existino businesses r0t.h our
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awa rsnni rs ss Si th stir prod ssot in hrs horst Peta Is
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ycst aIiorrss forsionifyn.t cross-ofiarrnssl dist rib rhinrs
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1230 nrassaai nss ann WE his 00 fy hi-el issvrs tli is
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2013

To move our business nearer its ultimate goals

of offering consumers their accessory brands of

choice being the best place to work and offering

stakeholders consistent profitable top-quartile

performance will require significant investment on

our part We intend to earmark portion of our

annual profits for that investment We believe that

the markets recognize and ultimately reward

companies who wisely capitalize their own future

As you know our model generates operating

margins that exceed many of our peers giving us

the financial capacity to regularly invest in growth

as part of our overall business strategy

Acquisitions remain the growth driver that quickly

can change the game for us We are committed

to and actively engaged in finding businesses

that will move us nearer to the $200-to-$250

million revenue milestone Since we completed

the modestly-sized baggallini and Foot Petals

purchases in fiscal 2011 we have lessened our

dependency on single category season or

channel of distribution and we have increased

our revenue and level of profitability We also

made two small strategic acquisitions for cash

in fiscal 2013 that are expected to help us extend

our bag platform

We hope to complete one or two meaningful

acquisitions annually We have the financial and

organizational ability to act very quickly when

the right deal is identified We are however not

willing to deviate significantly from the acquisition

filter and pricing parameters we have developed

to protect shareholders capital We will continue

to be patient thoughtful acquirers working to

balance the up and down cycles of the MA mar
ket with what we think is an appropriate cost for

adding real value to our portfolio Long-term we

believe this strategy is winning formula

Organically our growth initiatives are focused on

building consumer-direct sales into meaningful

and profitable revenue stream profitably expanding

the Companys international footprint from less than

5% of total revenues to double-digits growing

underpenetrated components of existing business

es such as mens accessory footwear and reinforc

ing and maintaining category leadership through

the use of best-in-class technology information

resources and business practices

The successes we have enjoyed to date and the

many great things that we are yet to achieve rest

squarely on the shoulders of our team members

thank each of them for their hard work dedication

and sacrifice in making RG Barry Brands better

and stronger each day also want to thank my
fellow Board members our suppliers customers

consumers and of course you the shareholders

for the continuing support of our vision

We are proud that we have generated eight years

of healthy profitable results while taking steps

toward becoming multi-dimensional growing

provider of functional fashionable accessories

The current businesses are healthy Our strategies

are solid adaptable to evolving conditions and

supported by the capital and infrastructure

necessary for profitable expansion We remain

highly optimistic and fully committed to providing

fashion and function for great Iifel

Sincerely

Greg Tunney

President Chief Executive Officer

RGBARRY BRANDS/ANNUAL REPORT
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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington D.C 20549

FORM 10-K

Mark One
E1 ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF TIE Rcci\eJ SF

SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended June 29 2013 SEP
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El TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d 4F\TRI Dc
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 -------L

For the transition period from ______________________ to ______________________

Commission File Number 001-08769

R.G BARRY CORPORATION
Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter

Ohio 31-4362899

State or other jurisdiction of I.R.S Employer

incorporation or organization IdentfIcation No

13405 Yarmouth Road N.W

Pickerington Ohio 43147 614 864-6400

Address of principal executive offices including zip code Registrants telephone number including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12b of the Act

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Re2istered

Common Shares Par Value $1.00 per share The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC

The NASDAQ Global Market

Series II Junior Participating Class The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC

Preferred Shares Par Value $1.00 per share

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12g of the Act None

Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is well-known seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act

YesEl No
Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15d of the Act

YesEl No
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15d of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to file

such reports and has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days Yes Il No El

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site if any every

Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T 232.405 of this chapter during

the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to submit and post such files Yes ll No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K 229.405 of this chapter is not

contained herein and will not be contained to the best of Registrants knowledge in definitive proxy or information statements

incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K E1

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is large accelerated filer an accelerated filer non-accelerated filer or

smaller reporting company See the definitions of large accelerated filer accelerated filer and smaller reporting

company in Rule 2b-2 of the Exchange Act

Large accelerated filer El Accelerated filer I1 Non-accelerated filer Li Smaller reporting company

Do not check if smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is shell company as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act Yes El No Il

The aggregate market value of the common shares the only common equity of the Registrant held by non-affiliates of the Registrant

was $144920786 based on the closing price per common share of $13.92 on The NASDAQ Global Market on December 28 2012

the last business day of the most recently completed second fiscal quarter For this purpose executive officers and directors of the

Registrant are considered affiliates



Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the Registrants classes of common stock as of the latest practicable date

11418837 common shares $1.00 par value as of September 11 2013

DOCUMENT INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Registrants definitive Proxy Statement to be furnished to shareholders of the Registrant in connection with the

2013 Aimual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on October 30 2013 which definitive Proxy Statement will be filed not later than

120 days after June 29 2013 are incorporated by reference into Part III of this Annual Report on Form 10-K to the extent provided

herein
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Saft Harbor Statement under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

Some of the disclosures in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 29 2013 the

2013 Form 10-K contain forward-looking statements that involve substantial risks and uncertainties

You can identify these statements by forward-looking words such as may expect could should

anticipate believe estimate or words with similar meanings Any statements that refer to

projections of our future performance anticipated trends in our business and other characterizations of

future events or circumstances are forward-looking statements These statements which are forward-

looking statements as that term is defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 are

based upon our current plans and strategies and reflect our current assessment of the risks and uncertainties

related to our business These risks include but are not limited to our continuing ability to source

products from third parties located within and outside North America competitive cost pressures the loss

of retailer customers to competitors consolidations bankruptcies or liquidations shifts in consumer

preferences the impact of the global financial crisis and general economic conditions on consumer

spending the impact of the highly seasonal nature of our footwear business upon our operations

inaccurate forecasting of consumer demand difficulties liquidating excess inventory disruption of our

supply chain or distribution networks our ability to secure and protect trademarks and other intellectual

property our ability to implement new enterprise resource information systems failure in or breach of

our operational or security systems or infrastructure or those of our third-party suppliers and other service

providers including as result of cyber-attacks the unexpected loss of any of the skills and experience of

any of our senior officers our ability to successfully integrate any business acquisitions and our

investment of excess cash in variable rate demand note securities and other short-term investments You

should read this 2013 Form 10-K carefully because the forward-looking statements contained in it

discuss our future expectations contain projections of our future results of operations or of our future

financial condition or state other forward-looking information The risk factors described in this

2013 Form 10-K and in our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC in

particular Item 1A Risk Factors of Part of this 2013 Form 10-K give examples of the types of

uncertainties that may cause actual performance to differ materially from the expectations we describe in

our forward-looking statements If the events described in this Safe Harbor Statement or in Item

Risk Factors of Part of this 2013 Form 10-K occur they could have material adverse effect on our

business operating results and financial condition You should also know that it is impossible to predict or

identify all risks and uncertainties related to our business Consequently no one should consider any such

list to be complete set of all potential risks and uncertainties Forward-looking statements speak only as

of the date on which they are made and we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking

statement to reflect circumstances or events that occur after the date on which the statement is made to

reflect unanticipated events Any further disclosures in our filings with the SEC should also be considered

DEFINITIONS

All references in this 2013 Form 10-K to we us our and the Company refer to R.G

Barry Corporation an Ohio corporation the registrant or where appropriate to R.G Barry Corporation

and its subsidiaries The Companys annual reporting period is either fifty-two-week or fifty-three-week

period fiscal year ending annually on the Saturday nearest June 30 For definitional purposes as used

herein the terms listed below include the respective periods noted

Fiscal 2014 52 weeks ending June 28 2014

Fiscal 2013 52 weeks ended June 29 2013

Fiscal 2012 52 weeks ended June 30 2012

Fiscal 2011 52 weeks ended July 2011



PART

Item Business

BUSINESS AND PRODUCTS

Overview

R.G Barry Corporation develops consumer brands and markets consumer products in three areas of the

retail accessories category These products include footwear such as slippers and sandals foot and shoe

care products such as cushioned insoles and handbags tote bags and travel items Our products are

primarily sold in North America by broad cross-section of retailers of varying sizes and classifications

Approximately 74% of the Companys fiscal 2013 consolidated net sales was generated through the sale of

accessories-type footwear which has been the Companys principal product line since our founding in

1947 The remaining consolidated net sales can principally be attributable to the Companys newer non-

footwear accessories businesses

R.G Barry Corporation uses flexible sourcing model for its operations Approximately 70% of the costs

and expenses related to product procurement and distribution are variable and expand and contract with

our needs Our products are primarily produced by contract manufacturers in the Peoples Republic of

China China with the exception of certain footwear products manufactured in Vietnam and certain foot

and shoe care products manufactured in the United States of America the U.S. Most of our products

are warehoused and shipped by third-party logistics providers located in the U.S

During fiscal 2013 we formalized our initiatives to develop the international footprint of all Business

Units through combination of growth into new markets with our retailer customers who have

existing international businesses strengthening of our existing international customer relationships

and development of new foreign markets

We are an Ohio corporation with executive offices located in Company-owned facility at 13405

Yarmouth Road N.W Pickerington Ohio 43147 Our telephone number is 614.864.6400 and our

corporate Internet website can be accessed at www.rgbarry.com this uniform resource locator or URL is

an inactive textual reference only and is not intended to incorporate our website into this 2013 Form 10-K
We have been public company since 1962 Our common shares are traded on The NASDAQ Global

Market NASDAQ-GM under the trading symbol DFZ which is meant to evoke the name of our

flagship slipper brand Dearfoams

Reporting Segments

Our business is divided into two reportable segments the Footwear segment which includes slippers and

sandals and the Accessories segment which includes foot and shoe care products handbags tote bags and

travel products The segments currently are comprised of three individual Business Units footwear

Foot Petals foot and shoe care products and Baggallini handbags tote bags and travel products

These Business Units are organized around specific accessories product categories and trademarked brand

names that we own We think our trademarks have significant commercial value In general trademarks

remain valid and enforceable as long as they are used in connection with our products and services and the

required registration renewals are filed We intend to continue the use of each of our trademarks and

renew each registered trademark accordingly

Our reporting segments were established using generally accepted aggregation criteria under which we

analyzed each Business Units products brand names distribution channels customer bases sourcing and

production methods and anticipated performance Our Foot Petals and Baggallini Business Units share

similar qualitative and quantitative characteristics that lend themselves to aggregation and that differentiate



them from our Footwear Business Unit We believe that utilizing these reporting segments allows us to

fairly represent our business and its financial results

See additional information on operating results as well as total assets for each of our reporting segments

in Note 17 Segment Reporting of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data in this 2013 Form 10-K

Each Business Unit is managed by Business Unit President who reports to the Companys President and

Chief Executive Officer Each Business Unit President is supported by team of business professionals

In-house corporate administration finance human resources information technology logistics creative

services and brand strategy professionals shared services are used in varying degrees by all Business

Unit Presidents Shared sales offices and showrooms are maintained for all of our brands at East 37th

Street in New York City

Many selling general and administrative expenses SGA are charged directly to the individual Business

Unit Certain shared service expenses are incurred and allocated to the respective Business Unit based on

estimated usage Operating profit as measured for each segment includes sales cost of sales direct and

allocated SGA expenses This segment measure of operating profit or loss as defined is the primary

indicator of internal financial performance used by management to evaluate the Business Unit

Other corporate expenses incurred are deemed to be applicable to the Company as whole and are not

allocated to any specific Business Unit These unallocated expenses primarily include areas such as the

Companys corporate and governance functions including the Chief Executive Officer the Chief Financial

Officer and the Board of Directors as well as expense areas including annual accrued incentive bonus

incentive stock compensation pension professional fees and similar corporate expenses

Footwear

Our Footwear segment is component of the overall accessories category and subset of the highly

competitive footwear industry According to independent industry research annual retail sales of

accessories footwear total in the neighborhood of $1 billion The category includes slippers sandals

hybrid and active fashion footwear and slipper socks We believe that we are one of the worlds largest

marketers of accessories footwear products and as such estimate that we sell about 30% of the slippers

purchased at retail in the U.S annually

We have sold nearly 1.3 billion pairs of accessories footwear under various brand names since our

founding in 1947 Today Dearfoams is our principal footwear brand Since its introduction in 1958

Dearfoams has according to our proprietary consumer research become one of the most-recognized

brand names in accessories footwear in the U.S In addition to Dearfoams our current footwear brand

names include Angel Treads DF by Dearfoams DF Sport by Dearfoams Signature by Dearfoams

and Utopia by Dearfoams

Most competitors in this segment are either privately-owned sourcing companies producing products

under various licensed brand names or retailers sourcing their own private label goods Companies

engaged in marketing apparel traditional footwear and other goods also periodically sell accessories

footwear items While some of these competitors have significantly greater financial distribution and

marketing resources than we do they traditionally have not committed the necessary assets to effectively

compete long-term within the category In addition some retailers have from time-to-time sought to

source their own accessories footwear products directly from overseas manufacturers We believe that

these attempts at self-sourcing have generally resulted in products of inferior quality that have ultimately

failed to achieve the retailers desired performance metrics

Denotes Company trademark registered in the United States Department of Commerce Patent and Trademark Office



Quality innovation and comfort in our products price value service to our customers category

marketing and merchandising expertise and reputation within the trade are the primary bases upon which

we compete Our extensive experience in this category and the benefits of scale gained as the category

leader give us tremendous advantages over most competitors We believe that we are the only accessories

footwear resource capable of providing the consistently high level of comprehensive service quality and

support that is recognized as hallmark of our wholesale footwear business

We debut new footwear collections each spring and fall in conjunction with national retail accessory

buying markets and other national trade events We plan to continue the seasonal introduction of updated

or new products in response to fashion changes consumer taste preferences and changes in the

demographic makeup of our consumer base

Several basic footwear profiles are standard in all of our footwear brand lines Many of these classic

footwear silhouettes are in demand throughout the year The most significant changes to our traditional

products are made in response to broadly-accepted fashion trends and can include elements such as slight

variations in design internal constructions outsoles ornamentations fabrics and colors

We currently license certain footwear brand names we own to Olivet International Inc Olivet The

five-year exclusive agreement entered in July 2010 gives Olivet sole right to develop and market variety

of sleepwear active wear and accessories products bearing the Dearfoams DF by Dearfoams DF Sport

by Dearfoams and Utopia by Dearfoams trademarks in North and South American markets We receive

quarterly royalty payments under this agreement

Although international sales today represent less than 4% of our consolidated net sales we view foreign

markets as potential drivers of future growth We currently sell footwear in Canada Mexico Israel

Central America and Asia

Our footwear products are sold through many retail channels including mass merchandisers national chain

stores warehouse clubs mid-tier department stores specialty and independent stores discount stores and

c-commerce and catalog retailers We utilize product segmentation strategy that allows us to

differentiate product among retail channels by design quality and retail price Suggested retail prices for

our footwear products range from approximately $7-to-$60 per pair depending upon the style retail

channel and retailer mark-up Independent research tells us that most buyers and consumers of our

footwear are adult females

We do not finance customers purchases beyond granting traditional payment terms at the time shipments

to the retailers are made We do grant limited return privileges and allowances to fund advertising and in-

season promotional activities to certain footwear customers Our direct-to-consumer footwear sales are

limited to those conducted through www.dearfoams.com this uniform resource locator or URL is an

inactive textual reference only and is not intended to incorporate our Dearfoams c-commerce website into

this 2013 Form 10-K

Our footwear business is comprised of two components replenishment and seasonal In the replenishment

component retailers carry relatively consistent planned assortment of products on year-round basis

These products generally are displayed in hanging presentation and are purchased by consumers on

repeat basis The in-store assortment is regularly replenished to ensure product availability for shoppers

The seasonal component is comprised of variety of more fashion-forward and boxed items that generally

are found in stores only during the key retail selling periods such as the period around the Christmas

holiday selling season Many of the purchases made in the seasonal business are impulse buys

Approximately 70% of our annual net sales in the Footwear segment have historically occurred from July

through December We have identified the popularity of slippers as holiday gift item as the main reason

for this heavy seasonal selling content



Our advertising/marketing initiatives in footwear generally are focused on increasing our dominance in

accessories footwear and expanding the relevance of Dearfoams to broader consumer demographic We
utilize seasonal in-store merchandisers during the critical holiday period as tool for managing the flow of

our footwear to the retail selling floor We believe that when combined with modern automatic demand-

pull replenishment systems and various other merchandising and sales techniques the use of temporary in-

store merchandisers helps us optimize critical holiday sell-through of our footwear products

Due to the seasonal nature of our Footwear segment the backlogs of unfilled footwear sales orders as of fiscal

August month-end periods that ended on August 31 2013 September 2012 and September 2011 were

$25.2 million $32.5 million and $34.3 million respectively The backlogs of unfilled sales orders at the

end of fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 were approximately $24.8 million $31.8 million and $31.3

million respectively comparisons between
years

reflect differences in the timing of order receipts only

and do not necessarily indicate growth or decline in sales volume

We purchase our footwear products from approximately 12 different third-party manufacturers most of

whom are located in China Our overall experience with third-party footwear manufacturers has been very

good in terms of reliability delivery times and product quality All of our third-party purchases are

conducted on an open account basis and in U.S Dollars

We operate sourcing office in Dongguan City China and quality control office in Nanjing China to

facilitate the development and procurement of our products and help ensure their quality and timely

delivery Approximately 47 team members work out of these facilities

We are dependent on third-party logistics providers to move our products from our third-party

manufacturers to the distribution facilities we utilize and from those facilities to our customers In our

Footwear segment we warehouse and distribute nearly all goods from third-party logistics facility in

Fontana California

Accessories

The Foot Petals and Baggallini Business Units collectively comprise our Accessories segment These

Business Units compete in the comfort insert and handbag subcategories of the $35 billion-plus at retail

accessories universe The subcategories in which we compete represent approximately 3/a and 26%
respectively of total annual accessories sales at retail We believe that these subcategories present us with

opportunities for higher and more profitable growth than the opportunities presented by our Footwear

segment

Foot Petals

Foot Petals sells foot and shoe care products priced between $7 and $45 Its products which include

comfort inserts primarily are targeted toward the foot comfort of women between the ages of 14 and 55

Many Foot Petals products are made from high-performance urethane or similar man-made materials and

various fabrics The products generally are sold at premium non-promotional prices and yield higher

margins than those earned in our Footwear segment

Foot Petals products are sold under variety of Company-owned brand names including Foot Petals Fab

Feet Glamour Toez Heavenly Heelz Killer Kushionz Tip Toes Pressure Points Amazing

Arches and Strappy Strips Sales to customers are handled by combination of Company-employed and

independent sales representatives Products also are presented to retailers at various national markets and

accessories trade shows Foot Petals share of its market is nominal Foot Petals emphasizes function

coupled with fashion at reasonable price whereas many competitors emphasize only function We do

not finance retailers purchases beyond granting traditional payment terms at the time shipments are made



Foot Petals products are sold principally to consumers through mass-merchants upper-tier department

stores independent retailers internet and home shopping venues We also sell direct-to-consumer via

www.footpetals.com this uniform resource locator or URL is an inactive textual reference only and is

not intended to incorporate our Foot Petals e-commerce website into this 2013 Form 10-K Due in part to

its non-seasonal nature the business has minimal exposure to obsolete inventory and net sales are

relatively evenly distributed throughout the fiscal year The replenishment nature of the Foot Petals

business model contributes to making it fast-turning low inventory volume business

small portion of this Business Units annual sales occur in foreign markets including Canada Japan

Singapore Turkey and Australia Foot Petals is part of our key strategic initiative to increase international

sales through variety of selling methods

Foot Petals brand cushions are considered premium products within their category and carry the Seal of

Acceptance of the American Podiatric Medical Association Among Foot Petals major competitors are

Dr Scholls Implus Footcare and Profoot

Products sold by this Business Unit are designed and developed by employees of the Company Foot

Petals products are primarily manufactured by third-party supplier based in Ohio and warehoused and

distributed through third-party logistics provider located adjacent to the suppliers manufacturing plant

We rely on third-party transport to move Foot Petals products to our customers

In addition to showroom and office space in our New York City location Foot Petals operates sales

office in Glen Rock New Jersey

Baggallini

Products marketed by our Baggallini Business Unit consist of various styles of handbags totes and travel

accessories priced between $40 and $180 that primarily are targeted toward women between the ages of 34

and 55 The Baggallini Business Units products are principally made from durable nylons leathers and

other man-made materials and are sold at premium non-promotional prices These products traditionally

are recognized for their lightweight construction and intelligent solution-oriented design The Baggallini

Business Unit generates higher margins than those earned in our Footwear segment

The strategic acquisition of the principal assets of the KIVA and Mosey brands during fiscal 2013

added to the product offerings of the Baggallini Business Unit hand bag coalition See Note 15
Acquisitions of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item Financial

Statements and Supplementary Data In this 2013 Form 10-K KIVA is 20-year-old tote bag and

luggage brand that primarily does business in the outdoor retail space and Mosey is 2-year-old fashion

handbag brand that is principally sold on-line and through non-promotional department stores Both

businesses utilize materials and constructions similar to those used in baggallini products and both sell

products that are produced in some of the same manufacturing plants used by the Baggallini Business Unit

These nominal businesses were acquired in January and April 2013 respectively

Principal trademarks for this Business Unit include baggallini and Le Bagg KIVA and Mosey Sales

are handled by combination of Company-employed and independent sales representatives Products are

presented to retailers at various gift and trade shows conducted at various locations and at various times of

the year Each brands market share of the total retail handbag category is nominal

The baggallini brand emphasizes function coupled with fashion elements at reasonable price whereas

many of its competitors primarily emphasize fashion The baggallini products are sold to consumers

through network of several thousand independent retail locations non-promotional department and chain

stores off-price channel customers and on-line retailers We also sell direct-to-consumer via

www.baggallini.com this uniform resource locator or URL is an inactive textual reference only and is



not intended to incorporate our baggallini e-commerce website into this 2013 Form 10-K Branded

handbag competitors include Kipling and LeSportsac Our Baggallini business is basically non

seasonal and evenly distributed throughout the fiscal year

KIVA develops and markets outdoor and travel bags and travel accessories which utilize eco-friendly

materials and functional designs KIVA products are primarily sold through independent and e-commerce

retailers in the outdoor channel The business is basically non-seasonal and evenly distributed throughout

the fiscal year

Mosey develops and markets handbags that while similar in materials and constructions to those sold by

Baggallini feature more fashion elements and higher retail prices Mosey products are sold through

non-promotional department stores independent stores and e-commerce retailers and are targeted toward

younger demographic than Baggallini Moseys business is basically non-seasonal and evenly distributed

throughout the fiscal year

We do not finance retailers purchases in this Business Unit beyond in some cases granting traditional

payment terms at the time of shipments to the retailers

The Baggallini Business Unit has modest international business in both the baggallini and Mosey brands

which we expect to expand as part of our Company-wide international growth strategy

Products sold by this Business Unit are designed and developed by employees of the Company They are

then sourced through network of contract manufacturers in China All of the Business Units third-party

purchases are conducted on an open account basis and in U.S Dollars We are dependent on third-party

logistics providers to move these products from our contract manufacturers to our leased Company-

operated distribution facilities in China and Oregon and from our distribution centers to customers

In conj unction with the purchase of the Mosey brand the Company integrated the operations of its former

China-based handbag sourcing agent who was also the owner of Mosey into our internal sourcing team

This integration added extensive expertise in all phases of handbag development and sourcing to the

Companys China-based operations while reducing duplication and costs in our sourcing of these

products

Although some of the Baggallini Business Unit products contain elements of fashion they focus more on

function thus lessening our exposure to obsolete inventory resulting from changing fashion trends The

various components of this Business Unit traditionally have operated with inventory levels that ensure

quick customer order fulfillment and replenishment while minimizing inventory risk

In addition to office and showroom space in our New York City location the Baggallini Business Unit

operates leased administrative office showroom and distribution center in suburban Portland

Milwaukie Oregon and leased bag sourcing office in Shenzhen China

BUSINESS ETHICS SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

We strive to incorporate our core values of integrity quality innovation leadership teamwork and

community into our business in manner that will lead to the long-term success of the Company our

shareholders and our team members We strive to achieve the highest business and personal ethical

standards as well as compliance with all applicable governmental laws rules and regulations We believe

that it is the responsibility of good corporate citizen to embrace social environmental and governance

factors as part
of its overall business strategy



Equal Employment Opportunities

We offer the opportunity of equal employment to all individuals without regard to disability race color

religion sex national origin or age and expect the same of all suppliers to our enterprise

Fair Labor Practices

Our Code of Ethical Business Conduct details our intolerance of the use of forced labor including but not

limited to slavery indentured bonded child or prison labor and human trafficking -- by anyone with

whom we do business

We require our suppliers to provide workers with clean safe and healthful work environment Factories

producing our merchandise must provide adequate medical facilities and ensure that all production and

manufacturing processes are carried out in conditions that have proper considerations for the health and

safety of the workers involved Suppliers also must respect the rights of employees to associate with any

group so long as such groups are legal within their own country

All of our suppliers and their contractors are randomly audited by independent third parties both

announced and unannounced to help ensure adherence to our expectations related to forced labor and

overall working conditions We require that all vendors doing business with us fairly compensate their

employees by providing wages and benefits that meet or exceed applicable local and national laws

scheduling reasonable work hours and providing reasonable days off vacation and leave privileges Each

supplier also must display signed Terms of Engagement document detailing this information in location

visible to all employees working at their facilities

The Company is C-TPAT Customs-Trade Partnership Against Terrorism certified which means we

comply with the U.S governments standards to ensure that our shipments out of other countries are safe

from tampering during the exporting process part of this certification process also includes periodic

inspections of our foreign manufacturers factories

Corporate Sustainability

The Company works to promote sustainable environmentally healthy business practices by identifying

and sharing practical innovative conservation methods adopting appropriate environmental policies and

encouraging all of our team members vendors and customers to incorporate green wherever possible

We have adopted recommendations from the ENERGY STAR program of the U.S Environmental

Protection Agency and the U.S Department of Energy at our facilities and encourage and expect our

suppliers to reduce excess packaging and use recycled nontoxic materials follow guidelines that will

prevent the future depletion of natural resources and ensure the use of safe materials in manufacturing

We anticipate no material capital expenditures for environmental control facilities for the foreseeable

future

PRODUCT DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT

Design and product development activities for all of our Business Units product lines during fiscal 2013

were conducted in the U.S and China

The principal raw materials used in our footwear foot care and handbag tote bag and travel products are

textile fabrics threads foams nylons other synthetic products recycled micro fleece mesh and high

performance urethane Raw materials also include organics such as leather suede and cotton fibers and

various packaging materials All of our raw materials are available from wide range of suppliers We

have not experienced any significant difficulty in obtaining raw materials
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During fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 we spent approximately $1.2 million $1.7 million and

$1.9 million respectively to make improvements in existing products and refresh the look and feel of our

product lines These design and development activities were primarily supported by approximately 15

full-time team members

SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMERS

The percentage of consolidated net sales made to our largest customers has declined in recent years
due to

the growth of our overall business and changes in customer mix Walmart Stores Inc and its affiliates

accounted for 26% 29% and 32% of our consolidated net sales during fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and fiscal

2011 respectively Our sales to Walmart Stores Inc and its affiliates are primarily in our Footwear

segment and are less seasonal in nature than sales to many of our other footwear customers No other

customer accounted for 10% or more of our consolidated net sales during fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and

fiscal 2011

FACILITIES

Our owned and leased principal administrative sales and distribution facilities are described above and

more fully below under Item Properties of this 2013 Form 10-K

EMPLOYEES

At the close of fiscal 2013 we employed 154 full-time team members Approximately 71% of our team

members are employed in the U.S

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We make available free of charge through our corporate Internet website all annual reports on Form 10-K

all quarterly reports on Form 10-Q all current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports

filed or furnished by the Company pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as amended the Exchange Act as well as our definitive annual meeting proxy materials as filed

pursuant to Section 14 of the Exchange Act These reports and proxy materials are available as soon as

reasonably practicable after they are electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange

Commission the SEC

Item 1A Risk Factors

There are certain risks and uncertainties in our business that could cause our actual results to differ

materially from those anticipated The following risk factors should be read carefully in connection with

evaluating our business and in connection with the forward-looking statements contained in this 2013

Form 10-K Any of these risks could materially adversely affect our business our operating results or our

financial condition and the actual outcome of matters as to which forward-looking statements are made

The global financial and general economic conditions that are largely out of our control may

adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations

Uncertainty about current and future global economic conditions may affect consumer spending or our

customers buying habits which would adversely affect demand for our products Our customers may be

impacted by the significant decrease in available credit If credit pressures or other financial difficulties

result in insolvency for these customers it could adversely impact our overall financial results

Furthermore reduced traffic in retail stores or limitations on the prices we can charge for our products

could reduce our sales and profit margins and have material adverse effect on our financial condition and

results of operations Our business financial condition results of operations and access to credit as well as

the trading price of our common shares could be materially and adversely affected if the economy fails to

stabilize or if current economic conditions do not improve or worsen
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Our North America business which is our primary business is dependent on our ability to continue

sourcing products from third-party manufacturers primarily from outside North America and to

lesser extent sourcing products for foot and shoe care products from third-party manufacturers in

North America

We do not own or operate any manufacturing facilities and depend upon independent third parties to

manufacture all of our products During fiscal 2013 most of our products were manufactured in China

The inability of our third-party manufacturers to ship orders of our products in timely manner or to meet

our quality standards could cause us to miss customer delivery date requirements and could result in

cancellation of orders refusals to accept deliveries returns or harm our ongoing business relationships

Furthermore because quality is leading factor when customers and retailers accept or reject goods any

decline in the quality of the products produced by our third-party manufacturers could be detrimental not

only to particular order but to future relationships with our customers

We compete with other companies for the production capacity of our third-party manufacturers Some of

these competitors have greater financial and other resources than we have and may have an advantage in

securing production from these manufacturers If we experience significant increase in demand for our

products or if one of our existing third-party manufacturers must be replaced we may have to find

additional third-party manufacturing capacity There can be no assurance that this additional capacity will

be available when required or will be available on terms that are similar to the terms that we have with our

existing third-party manufacturers or that are otherwise acceptable to us If it is necessary for us to replace

one or more of our third-party manufacturers particularly one that we rely on for substantial portion of

our products we may experience an adverse financial or operational impact such as increased costs for

replacement manufacturing capacity or delays in the distribution and delivery of our products to our

customers which could cause us to lose customers or revenues because of late shipments or customers

being unwilling to absorb increased costs

Our international manufacturing operations are subject to the risks of doing business abroad

We currently purchase most of our products from China We expect to continue to purchase our products

from China at approximately the same levels in the future This international sourcing subjects us to the

risks of doing business abroad These risks include

the impact on product development sourcing or manufacturing from public health and

contamination risks in China or other countries where we obtain or market our products

acts of war and terrorism

the impact of disease pandemics

social and political disturbances and instability and similar events

strikes or other labor disputes

export duties import controls tariffs quotas and other trade barriers

shipping and transport problems

increased expenses particularly those impacted by any increase in oil prices

fluctuations in currency values and

general economic conditions and regulatory environments in overseas markets

Because we rely primarily on Chinese third-party manufacturers for substantial portion of our product

needs any disruption in our relationships with these manufacturers could adversely affect our operations

While we believe these relationships are strong if trade relations or regulatory changes between the United

States and China deteriorate or are threatened by instability our business could be adversely affected

Although we believe that we could find alternative manufacturing sources there can be no assurance that

these sources would be available on terms that are favorable to us or comparable to those with our current
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manufacturers Furthermore material change in the valuation of the Chinese currency could adversely

impact our product costs resulting in significant negative impact on our results of operations

Our concentration of customers could have material adverse effect on us and our success is

dependent on the success of our customers

As result of the continuing consolidation in the retail industry our footwear customer base has decreased

thus increasing the concentration of our customers Our largest customer Wal-Mart Stores Inc and its

affiliates accounted for approximately 26% 29% and 32% of our consolidated net sales in fiscal 2013

fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 respectively If this customer reduced or discontinued its product purchases

from us it would adversely affect our results of operations Additionally in recent years several major

department stores have experienced consolidation and ownership changes In the future retailers may

undergo additional changes that could decrease the number of stores that carry our products which could

adversely affect our results

Our success is also impacted by the financial results and success of our customers If any of our major

customers or substantial portion of our customers generally experiences significant downturn in

business fails to remain committed to our products or brands or realigns affiliations with suppliers or

decides to purchase products directly from the manufacturer then these customers may reduce or

discontinue purchases from us which could have material adverse effect on our business results of

operations and financial condition We are also subject to the buying plans of our customers and if our

customers do not inform us of changes in their buying plans until it is too late for us to make necessary

adjustments to our product supply we may be adversely affected We do not have long-term contracts

with our customers and sales normally occur on an order-by-order basis As result customers can

generally terminate their commercial relationship with us at any time

Our business faces cost pressures which could affect our business results

While we rely on third-party manufacturers as the source of our products the cost of these products

depends in part on the manufacturers raw materials labor and energy costs Thus our own costs are

subject to fluctuations particularly due to changes in the cost of raw materials and cost of labor in the

locations where our products are manufactured foreign exchange and interest rates

The footwear and accessory product categories are highly competitive

The product categories in which we do most of our business are highly competitive businesses If we fail

to compete effectively we may lose market position We operate in relatively small segment of the

overall footwear and accessory industries We believe that we are among the worlds largest marketers of

slipper footwear products However this category is very small component of the overall footwear

industry In recent years companies that are engaged in other areas of the footwear industry and apparel

companies have begun to market slipper footwear and many of these competitors have substantially greater

financial distribution and marketing resources than we do In addition some of our retail customers for

our products have sought to import competitive products directly from manufacturers in China and

elsewhere for sale in their stores on private
label basis The primary methods we use to compete in our

industry include product design product performance quality brand image price marketing and

promotion and our ability to meet delivery commitments to retailers major marketing or promotional

success or technical innovation by one of our competitors could adversely impact our competitive

position

Our business is subject to consumer preferences and unanticipated shifts in tastes or styles could

adversely affect our sales and results of operations

Our product categories can be subject to rapid changes in consumer preferences Our performance may be

hurt by our competitors product development sourcing pricing and innovation as well as general changes

in consumer tastes and preferences These categories are also subject to sudden shifts in consumer

13



spending and reduction in such spending could adversely affect our results of operations Consumer

spending may be influenced by the amount of consumer disposable income which may fluctuate based on

number of factors including general economic conditions consumer confidence and business conditions

Further consumer acceptance of new products may fall below expectations and may result in excess

inventories or the delay of the launch of new product lines

If we inaccurately forecast consumer demand we may experience difficulties in handling consumer

orders or liquidating excess inventories and results of operations may be adversely affected

The slipper footwear business is highly seasonal and has relatively long lead times for the design and

manufacture of products Consequently we must commit to production in advance of orders based on our

forecast of consumer demands If we fail to forecast consumer demand accurately we may under- or over-

source product and encounter difficulty in handling customer orders or liquidating excess inventory and

we may have to sell excess inventory at reduced cost Further due to the fashion-oriented nature of

portion of our products rapid changes in consumer preferences lead to an increased risk of inventory

obsolescence While we believe we have successfully managed this risk in recent years and believe we

can successfully manage it in the future our operating results will be adversely affected if we are unable to

do so

We rely on distribution centers to store and distribute our products and if there is natural disaster

or other serious disruption affecting any of these facilities or our methods of transport we may be

unable to effectively deliver products to our customers

We rely on our leased distribution centers as well as third-party logistics providers to store and distribute

product to our customers Significant disruptions affecting the flow of products to and from these facilities

due to natural disasters labor disputes such as dock strikes or any other cause could delay receipt and

shipment of portion of our inventory This could impair our ability to timely deliver our products to our

customers and negatively impact our operating results Although we have insured our finished goods

inventory for the amount equal to its carrying cost plus normal profit expected in the sale of that inventory

against losses due to fire earthquake tornado flood and terrorist attacks our insurance program does not

protect us against losses due to delays in our receipt and distribution of products due to transport

difficulties cancelled orders or damaged customer relationships that could result from major disruption

affecting the flow of products to and from our distribution facilities

Further we are dependent on methods of third-party transport to move our products to and from these

facilities Circumstances may arise where we are unable to find available or reasonably priced shipping to

the United States from our manufacturers in China and elsewhere or road and rail transport to our

customers If our methods of transport are disrupted or if costs increase sharply or suddenly due to price

increases of oil in the world markets or other inflationary pressures we may not be able to affordably or

timely deliver our products to our customers

The seasonal nature of our footwear business makes management more difficult and severely

reduces cash flow and liquidity during certain parts of the year

significant portion of our footwear business is highly seasonal and much of the results of our operations

are dependent on strong performance during the last six months of the calendar year particularly the

holiday selling season The majority of our marketing and sales activities for our footwear business takes

place at industry market week and trade shows in the spring and fall Our inventory is largest in the early

fall to support our customers requirements for the fall and holiday selling seasons Historically our cash

position is strongest in the first six months of the calendar year Unfavorable economic conditions

affecting retailers during the fall and through the holiday season in any year could have material adverse

effect on the results of our operations for the year Although our acquisitions during fiscal 2011 and fiscal

2013 have added businesses with year-round replenishment shipments we can offer no assurance that the

overall significant seasonal nature of our business will change in the future
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Our unsecured credit agreement includes financial and other covenants that impose restrictions on

our financial and business operations

Our unsecured credit agreement signed in March 2011 contains financial covenants that require us to

maintain minimum levels regarding our financial condition and operating performance If we fail to

comply with the covenants and are unable to obtain waiver or amendment an event of default would

result and the lender could declare outstanding borrowings immediately due and payable If that should

occur we cannot guarantee that we would have sufficient liquidity at that time to repay or refinance

borrowings under the unsecured credit agreement

Modifications and/or upgrades to our information technology systems may disrupt our operations

We regularly evaluate our information technology systems and requirements and are currently

implementing modifications and/or upgrades to the information technology systems that support our

business Modifications include replacing legacy systems with successor systems making changes to

legacy systems or acquiring new systems with new functionality We are aware of the inherent risks

associated with replacing and modifying these systems including inaccurate system information system

disruptions and user acceptance and understanding We believe we are taking appropriate action to

mitigate the risks through disciplined adherence to methodology program management testing and user

involvement as well as securing appropriate
commercial contracts with third-party vendors supplying the

replacement technologies Information technology system disruptions and inaccurate system information

if not anticipated and appropriately mitigated could have material adverse effect on our financial

condition and results of operations Additionally there is no assurance that successfully implemented

system will deliver the anticipated value to us

failure in or breach of our operational or security systems or infrastructure or those of our

third-party suppliers and other service providers including as result of cyber-attack may disrupt

our operations

Our success depends in part on the secure and uninterrupted performance of our information technology

systems Our information technology systems as well as those of our service providers are vulnerable to

damage from variety of sources including telecommunication failures malicious human acts and natural

disasters Moreover despite network security measures some of our servers and those of our service

providers are potentially vulnerable to physical or electronic break-ins computer viruses and similar

disruptive problems Despite the precautions we have taken unanticipated problems may nevertheless

cause failures in our information technology systems Sustained or repeated system failures that interrupt

our ability to process orders and deliver products to the stores or impact our consumers ability to access

our websites in timely manner or expose confidential customer information could have material

adverse effect on our results of operations financial condition and cash flows

We rely on the experience and skills of our senior executive officers the loss of whom could have

material adverse effect on our business

Our senior executive officers closely supervise all aspects of our business Our senior executive officers

have substantial experience and expertise in our business and have made significant contributions to the

growth and success of our brands If we were to lose the benefit of their involvement without adequate

succession plans our business could be adversely affected Competition for such senior executive officers

is intense and we cannot be sure we will be able to attract retain and develop sufficient number of

qualified senior executive officers in the future

For any business acquisitions we undertake we depend on our ability to successfully integrate and

operate those newly acquired businesses

We may be unable to consummate integrate or manage our acquisitions portion of our recent sales and

profitability growth has occurred through acquisitions We may from time to time seek opportunities to

acquire attractive businesses There are no assurances however that any acquisition opportunities will
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arise or if they do that they will be consummated or that any needed additional financing for such

opportunities will be available on satisfactory terms when required In addition acquisitions involve risks

that the businesses acquired will not perform in accordance with expectations and that business judgment

concerning the value strengths and weaknesses of businesses acquired will prove incorrect The acquired

businesses may not be integrated successfully and the acquisition may strain our management resources or

divert managements attention from other business concerns Failure to successfully integrate any of our

acquisitions may cause significant operating inefficiencies and could adversely affect our operations and

financial condition

We periodically invest funds in marketable securities and the ultimate repayment of amounts

invested depends on the financial capacity of the related financial institutions and corporations

involved

We periodically invest funds in marketable securities for which the ultimate repayment of invested

amounts is dependent on the financial capacity of the related financial institutions and corporations

involved At June 29 2013 as part of our cash management and investment program we maintained

portfolio of $17.7 million in short-term investments including $11.7 million in marketable investment

securities consisting of variable rate demand notes and $6.0 million in other short-term investments The

marketable investment securities are classified as available-for-sale These marketable investment

securities are carried at cost which approximates fair value The other short-term investments are

classified as held-to-maturity securities and include several commercial paper investments which matured

in August 2013

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

No response required

Item Properties

The Company owns its corporate headquarters and executive offices located at 13405 Yarmouth Road

N.W in Pickerington Ohio facility that contains approximately 55000 square feet The Company
leases space aggregating approximately 89500 square feet at an approximate total annual rent of

$612500 The following table describes the Companys principal leased properties during fiscal 2013 and

the operating status of those properties at June 29 2013

Approximate Approximate Lease

Location SQuare Feet Annual Rental Expires Renewals

1887 SE Milport Office Shipping 70000 294500 2014 year

Milwaukie Oregon Distribution Center

East 37t Street ltl Floor Sales Office 5000 200000 2015 None

New York City New York Showroom

Room 1101 Huiye Building Sourcing 8700 62800 2014 None

No 17 Dongguan Ave Representative

Dongcheng District Office

Dongguan City Guangdong

Province China

194 Rock Road Sales office 1500 29000 2014 None

Glen Rock New Jersey

903 S.E 28th Street Suite Sales Administration 1300 19500 Month to Month to

Bentonville Arkansas Office month month
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Approximate Approximate Lease

Location Use Square Feet Annual Rental Expires Renewals

Room 106 Building No Sourcing Quality 2900 6600 2015 None

Tianzeyuan Block No 588 Control Office

Zhushan Road Jiangning

Science Area Nanjing

Jiangsu China

UnitA21F Sourcing 2900 41200 2013 None

Shenmao Commercial Center Representative

Jlngtian Sanlu Futian Office

District Shenzhen China

The Company believes that all of our owned or leased buildings are well maintained in good operating

condition and suitable for their present uses

Item Legal Proceedings

The Company is from time to time involved in claims and litigation considered normal in the ordinary

course of our business There are no significant legal proceedings pending for the Company While it is

not feasible to predict the ultimate outcome in the opinion of management the resolution of pending legal

proceedings is not expected to have material effect on the Companys financial position results of

operations or cash flows

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable

Supplemental Item Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table lists the names and ages of the executive officers of the Company as of September 11

2013 the positions with the Company presently held by each executive officer and the business experience

of each executive officer during the past five years Unless otherwise indicated each individual has had

his or her principal occupation for more than five years The executive officers serve at the discretion of

the Board of Directors subject when applicable to their respective contractual rights with the Company

and in the case of Mr Tunney and Mr Eckols pursuant to an employment agreement There are no

family relationships among any of the Companys executive officers or directors
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Positions Held with the Company and

Name Age Principal Occupation for Past Five or More Years

Greg 52 Chief Executive Officer of the Company since May 2006 President of the Company since

Tunney February 2006 Director of the Company since August 2006 Chief Operating Officer of the

Company from February 2006 to May 2006 President Chief Operating Officer and Director

of Phoenix Footwear Group Inc supplier of diversified selection of mens and womens

dress and casual footwear belts personal items outdoor sportswear and travel apparel from

1998 to February 2005

Jose 54 Senior Vice President Finance and Chief Financial Officer of the Company since January

Ibarra 2009 Secretary of the Company from January 2009 to October 2009 Senior Vice President

Treasurer of the Company from July 2008 to January 2009 Vice President Treasurer of the

Company from December 2004 to June 2008

Glenn 52 Senior Vice President Global Operations of the Company since July 2010 Senior Vice

Evans President-Supply Chain and Logistics of the Company from November 2006 to July 2010

Senior Vice President Creative Services and Sourcing of the Company from November 2003

to November 2006

Yvonne 48 Senior Vice President Human Resources of the Company since February 2008 Vice

Kalucis President Human Resources of the Company from September 2007 to February 2008

Lee 51 Senior Vice President Strategic Brand and Channel Services of the Company since 2012

Smith Senior Vice President Creative Services of the Company from January 2009 to November

2012 Senior Vice President Design and Product Development of the Company from

December 2006 to January 2009

Nancy 53 Business Unit President Footwear since June 2011 President Dearfoams from July 2010 to

Coons June 2011 Principal of Coons Consulting Co company providing brand strategy product

development and merchandising consultant services from April 2008 to June 2010

Dennis 64 Business Unit President Baggallini Inc since June 2011 President Baggallini hc from

Eckols April 2011 to June 2011 Chief Operating Officer Baggallini Inc prior to its acquisition by

the Company January 2003 to April 2011

Mark 46 Business Unit President Foot Petals Inc since January 2012 Vice President of Marketing of

Zobel the Company from August 2010 to January 2012 Director of Marketing of the Company from

November 2009 to August 2010 Director of Business Development Strategy Blue Ribbon

Digital an interactive advertising agency based in New York New York from June 2007 to

February 2008
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Eciuity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Eguity Securities

Market and Dividend Information

Sales Price Per Common Share

Dividends

Declared per

Quarter High Low Close Common Share

Fiscal 2013 First 14.98 12.49 14.74 0.08

Second 15.62 12.50 13.41 0.17

Third 14.73 11.24 13.39 0.00

Fourth 16.26 12.88 16.24 0.09

Fiscal2Ol2 First 11.82 8.15 10.60 0.07

Second 13.00 9.58 12.08 0.07

Third 14.21 11.30 12.20 0.08

Fourth 13.85 11.23 13.59 0.08

Since March 2008 common shares of the Company have traded on NASDAQ-GM under the DFZ
symbol The high low and close sales prices per common share shown above reflect the prices as reported

in NASDAQ-GM

Approximate Number of Registered Shareholders 1900 as of September 11 2013

The declaration and payment of future dividends with respect to the Companys common shares will

depend on the net earnings financial condition shareholders equity levels cash flow and business

requirements of the Company as determined by the Board of Directors

The unsecured Credit Agreement the New Facility between the Company and The Huntington

National Bank Huntington as entered into on March 2011 places no direct restrictions on the

Companys ability to pay cash dividends See the discussion of the New Facility in Note 6Short-term

Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data and in Item Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this 2013 Form 10-K

Information Regarding Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

No disclosure is required under Item 701 of SEC Regulation S-K

Purchases of Equity Securities by Registrant

Neither the Company nor any affiliated purchaser as defined in Rule lOb-18a under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended purchased any common shares of the Company during the fiscal

quarter ended June 29 2013 The Company does not currently have in effect publicly-announced

repurchase plan or program However with respect to stock awards granted to employees the Company is

authorized under the terms of its stock-based compensation plans to withhold common shares which would

otherwise be issued in order to satisfy related individual tax liabilities upon issuance of common shares in

accordance with the terms of restricted stock unit RSU agreements
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Stock Performance Graph and Cumulative Total Shareholder Return

The graph below shows the cumulative total shareholder return assuming the investment of $100 on June

30 2008 and the reinvestment of dividends thereafter on each of R.G Barry Corporations common

shares and the NASDAQ Composite-Total Returns the Russell 2000 the Dow Jones U.S Footwear and

the Dow Jones U.S Clothing Accessories indices With the acquisition of accessory product businesses

during fiscal 2011 the Dow Jones U.S Clothing Accessories index has been added to reflect this new

segment for the Company The comparisons in the graph below are based upon historical data and are not

indicative of or intended to forecast future performance of R.G Barry Corporations common shares
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Comparison of Year Cumulative Total Return

Assumes Initial Investment of $100 at June 28 2008

.R.G Barry Corporation NASDAQ Composite-Total Returns

Russell 2000 Index SDow Jones US Footwear Index

/Dow Jones US Clothing Accessories Index

Company/Market/Peer Group 6/28/2008 6/27/2009 7/3/2010 7/2/2011 6/30/2012 6/29/2013

R.G Barry Corporation 100.00 93.17 140.13 145.68 177.38 217.10

NASDAQ Composite-Total

Returns 100.00 80.20 92.09 125.13 131.93 155.48

Russell 2000 Index 100.00 74.79 88.45 125.54 121.09 150.45

Dow Jones US Footwear Index 100.00 82.35 110.54 159.64 143.70 208.04

Dow Jones US Clothing

Accessories Index 100.00 78.46 107.64 188.03 188.54 248.79

6/28/2008 6/27/2009 7/3/2010 7/2/2011 6/30/2012 6/29/2013
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Item Selected Financial Data

Selected Financial Data

Dollars in thousands except per common share amounts

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Netsales $147013 $155938 $129568 $123787 $113817

Gross profit 63944 67168 48163 51359 43467

Grossprofitaspercentofnetsales
43.5% 43.1% 37.2% 41.5% 38.2%

Selling general and administrative expenses
42964 43795 36483 36623 32971

Operating profit
20980 23373 11680 14736 10496

Netearnings
13257 14549 7510 9400 6992

Basic earnings per common share
1.17 1.30 0.68 0.86 0.66

Diluted earnings per common share
1.15 1.27 0.67 0.85 0.65

Dividends declared per common share 0.34 0.30 0.28 0.15 0.25

Long-term debt excluding current installments 16071 20357 24643 97

Total assets 130253 128266 115979 83369 75083

Other Data

Capital expenditures
1055 1834 676 1181 1365

Depreciation and amortization expense
2807 3045 1891 867 775

See Item Mana2ements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for information regarding the

factors that have affected the financial results of the Company The Companys annual reporting period is either fifty-two-week or fifty

three-week period fiscal year Fiscal 2010 was fifty-three-week period For all periods the selected financial data set forth above is

derived from the Companys audited consolidated financial statements

Results for fiscal 2011 include those businesses acquired during fiscal 2011 Foot Petals LLC on January 27 2011 and Baggallini Inc on

March 31 2011 starting from the date of the respective acquisitions
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Introduction

Our Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations MDA is intended to

provide investors and others with information we believe is necessary to understand the Companys financial condition

changes in financial condition results of operations and cash flows This MDA should be read in conjunction with our

Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and other information included

in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data in this 2013 Form 10-K All dollar amounts except as

stated on per common share basis are rounded and represent approximate amounts when cited in the text within this

section

Unless the context otherwise requires references in this MDA to our us we or the Company refer to R.G

Barry Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries

Our Company and its subsidiaries Foot Petals Inc and Baggallini Inc are engaged in designing sourcing marketing

and distributing footwear foot and shoe care products and hand bags tote bags and other travel accessories We operate

with three operating segments two of which are aggregated into single reportable segment The two reportable

segments include Footwear that encompasses primarily slippers sandals hybrid and fashion footwear and Accessories

with products including foot and shoe care products handbags tote bags and other travel accessories Our products are

sold predominantly in North America through the accessory sections of department stores national chain stores

warehouse clubs specialty and independent stores television shopping networks e-tailinglinternet based retailers

discount stores and mass merchandising channels of distribution

All comments made herein relative to period over period comparisons refer to results reported for fiscal 2013 as compared

to fiscal 2012 and for fiscal 2012 as compared to fiscal 2011 when applicable

Summary of Results for Fiscal 2013

During fiscal 2013 we remained focused on achieving our principal goals

grow our business profitably by pursuing key initiatives based on innovation within our product lines and

acquisition opportunities outside of our core footwear business

continue efforts to strengthen the relationships with our retailing partners and open distribution of our

products in new retail channels and

further enhance the image of our brands through both customer and consumer advertising

During fiscal 2013 we accomplished the following

Achieved solid profitability in the Footwear segment despite challenging fiscal 2013

ci Successfully implemented and integrated new information technology systems

Successfully continued to grow our accessory products businesses within multiple channels achieving the

levels of profitability targets established for the Accessories segment for fiscal 2013

Reported consolidated net earnings of $13.3 million or 9.0% of net sales

Reported cash cash equivalents and short-term investments of $39.5 million at the end of fiscal 2013

Looking Ahead to Fiscal 2014 and Beyond

Looking ahead to fiscal 2014 and beyond our strategy continues to center on growing our business through acquisitions

increasing our distribution channels within our footwear business growing our accessory products businesses within their

traditional as well as new channels achieving levels of profitability that are at or above top quartile performance within

our peer group and ultimately delivering financial performance that drives growth and long-term shareholder value

See the discussion under the caption Item 1A Risk Factors in this 2013 Form 10-K
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Summary of Consolidated Results of Operations Fiscal 2013 Compared to Fiscal 2012

Effective with the first quarter of fiscal 2012 the Company implemented organizational changes in its reporting structure

including the creation of separate Business Unit President for each business unit with each President reporting to the

Chief Executive Officer CEO of R.G Barry Corporation Each Business Unit President has financial performance

responsibility for the operating unit The measure of such operating unit operating profit was redefined and our internal

financial reporting structure changed accordingly

Under this reporting structure the operating profit or loss measure for an operating unit includes sales cost of sales direct

SGA expenses and allocated SGA expenses from certain shared services for which expenses are incurred and are

allocated to each operating unit based on estimated usage of such corporate support Other corporate expenses are

deemed applicable to the Company as whole and are not allocated to any specific operating unit Such unallocated

expenses include costs associated with the Companys corporate and governance functions including the CEO the Chief

Financial Officer and the Board of Directors as well as such expense areas as annual accrued incentive bonus incentive

stock compensation pension professional fees and similar corporate expense areas

Our Footwear and Accessories segments results reported below for fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 have been

presented based on this reporting approach

Consolidated Results of Operations

Listed below are excerpts from our consolidated statements of income for fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012

all amounts in 000s of of

Net Net Increase

Fiscal 2013 Sales Fiscal 2012 Sales Decrease

Net sales 147013 100.0 155938 100.0 8925
Gross profit 63944 43.5 67168 43.1 3224

Selling general and administrative

expenses 42964 29.2 43795 28.1 831

Operating profit 20980 14.3 23373 15.0 2393
Other income and interest expense net 531 0.4 113 0.1 644

Income before income taxes 21511 14.6 23260 14.9 1749

Incometaxexpense 8254 5.6 8711 5.6 457
Net earnings 13257 9.0 14549 9.3 1292

Consolidated net sales decreased by 5.7% reflecting decrease in net sales in the Footwear segment offset in part by an

increase in net sales in the Accessories segment The decrease in shipments in the Footwear segment of $15.0 million or

12.2% was primarily associated with customers in the department store mass merchandising warehouse club and

discount customer channels offset in part by an increase in shipments to customers in the catalog dot corn and televised

retailer channels Within the Accessories segment shipments increased by $6.1 million or 18.6% reflecting primarily

increased net shipments to customers in discount department store and other customer channels

Consolidated
gross profit dollars decreased by 4.8% but

gross profit as percentage of net sales increased by 40 basis

points The decrease in gross profit dollars was primarily due to the lower overall sales volume noted above while the

increase in gross profit as percentage of net sales primarily reflected the effect of segment customer and product mix

within net sales during the period including discontinuation of lower margin licensed footwear products

Consolidated SGA expenses in dollars decreased by 1.9% primarily due to lower incentive bonus expense and lower

expenses in broad range of corporate areas

Consolidated other income reflected higher levels of royalty income associated with our current licensing agreements

consolidated interest expense was nominally lower
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The effective tax rates for fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012 were 38.4% and 37.5% respectively The change in the effective

tax rate year-over-year is primarily due to the beneficial effect in fiscal 2012 of revaluing our deferred tax assets at higher

tax rate levels based on future rates expected for the Company

Based on the results of operations noted above we reported decrease in consolidated net earnings of 8.9% at $13.3

million or $1.15 per diluted common share for fiscal 2013 as compared to $14.5 million or $1.27 per diluted share for

fiscal 2012

Results of Operations Footwear segment

Our Footwear segment encompasses designing sourcing marketing and distributing footwear products We define

footwear as product category that includes primarily slippers sandals and hybrid and active fashion footwear and slipper

socks Our footwear products are sold through multiple retail channels including mass merchandisers national chain

stores warehouse clubs mid-tier department stores specialty and independent stores discount stores and e-commerce and

catalog retailers

Selected financial results for fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012 were

%of %of

all amounts in 000s Fiscal 2013 Net Sales Fiscal 2012 Net Sales Decrease

Net sales 108334 100.0 123336 100.0 15002
Gross profit 43006 39.7 48901 39.6 5895

Operating profit 23736 21.9 28247 22.9 4511

Net sales decreased by 12.2% due primarily to lower shipments to customers in the department store mass

merchandising warehouse club and discount customer channels offset in part by an increase in shipments to customers in

the catalog/dot corn and televised retailer channels

Gross profit dollars decreased by 12.1% and
gross profit as percentage of net sales was flat The decrease in gross profit

dollars was primarily due to the impact of decreased shipment volumes noted above

Operating profit decreased due to lower shipments and gross profit as noted above offset in part primarily by lower

shipping and marketing related expense of $0.9 million and $0.7 million respectively

Results of Operations Accessories segment

The Accessories segment comprised of Foot Petals and Baggallini Business Units encompasses the designing sourcing

marketing and distribution of variety of accessory category products These consumer product offerings range from

shoe and foot care products to handbags tote bags and other travel accessories These products are sold predominately in

North America through customers primarily in the specialty and independent store television shopping network

tailing/internet based retail upper tier department store and mass merchandising channels Our business activity with

these customers is primarily replenishment in nature with sales spread evenly throughout the year

Selected financial results for fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012 were

all amounts in 000s
%of %of

Fiscal 2013 Net Sales Fiscal 2012 Net Sales Increase

Net sales 38679 100.0 32602 100.0 6077

Gross profit 20938 54.1 18268 56.0 2670

Operating profit 7543 19.5 6096 18.7 1447

Net sales increased 18.6% due primarily to increased shipments to discount and department store customer channels

offset by decreased shipments in televised retailer and other customer channels
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Gross profit in dollars increased by 14.6% due to the increased shipments noted above but gross profit as percentage of

net sales contracted by 190 basis points reflecting the impact of increased shipments year over year to customers in the

lower margin discount channel

Operating profit increased by 23.7% due to the increased level of shipments and gross profit noted above offset in part by

increased selling and shipping expense of $1.1 million and $0.4 million respectively

Results of Operations Unallocated Corporate Expenses

Consistent with our internal reporting structure certain corporate expenses deemed applicable to the Company as whole

were not allocated to any business segment Such costs included those associated with the Companys corporate and

governance functions including the CEO the Chief Financial Officer and the Board of Directors as well as such expense

areas as annual accrued incentive bonus incentive stock compensation pension professional fees and similar corporate

expenses These unallocated costs are shown below

all amounts in 000s Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012 Decrease

Unallocated corporate expenses 10299 10970 671

The decrease of $0.7 million primarily reflected decrease in annual incentive expense of $1 million offset in part by

net increase in spending in broad range of other corporate areas

Summary of Consolidated Results of Operations Fiscal 2012 Compared to Fiscal 2011

Listed below are excerpts from our consolidated statements of income

of of Increase

all amounts in 000s Fiscal 2012 Net Sales Fiscal 2011 Net Sales Decrease

Net sales 155938 100.0 129568 100.0 26370

Gross profit 67168 43.1 48163 37.2 19005

Selling general and administrative

expenses 43795 28.1 36483 28.2 7312

Operating profit 23373 15.0 11680 9.0 11693

Other income and interest expense net 113 0.1 158 0.1 271
Income before income tax 23260 14.9 11838 9.1 11422

Income tax expense 8711 5.6 4328 3.3 4383

Net earnings 14549 9.3 7510 5.8 7039

Consolidated net sales increased by 20.4% due primarily to an increase of $21.9 million in sales from our Accessories

segment reflecting the benefit of full year of sales since we acquired the Foot Petals business at the end of January 2011

and the Baggallini business at the end of March 2011 Within the Footwear segment shipments increased by $4.5

million primarily to customers in the department store and mass merchandising channels offset in part by decrease in

shipments to customers in the specialty and independent store channels

Consolidated gross profit dollars increased by 9.5% and
gross profit as percentage of net sales increased by 5.9

percentage points The increases in
gross profit dollars and gross profit as percentage of net sales were due to the

incremental
gross profit contribution of $11.9 million from higher margin Accessories segment sales during the period

and the margin expansion on shipments by the Footwear segment due principally to lower freight costs incurred during

fiscal 2012 and the non-recurrence of costs incurred during fiscal 2011 associated with expediting product to our

Footwear segment customers

Consolidated SGA expense in dollars increased by 20.0% due to incremental $8.8 million in SGA expense associated

with our Accessories segment businesses and an increase in incentive bonus expense due to the Companys fiscal

2012 profitability against our annual incentive plan targets
offset in part by lower advertising and other marketing

related expenses and improved efficiencies in support of our business segments
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Consolidated interest expense increased due to the carrying of long- term debt incurred in support of the acquisitions

made during fiscal 2011 for the full year in fiscal 2012 Other income and interest income were nominally higher for the

period reflecting increased minimumroyalties from an existing royalty agreement and additional royalties from

licensing agreement executed during fiscal 2012 with Canadian footwear distributor

The effective tax rates for fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 were 37.5% and 36.6% respectively The change in the effective

tax rate year-over-year reflected primarily the impact from higher federal income tax rate based on our expected

taxable income for fiscal 2012 and the net effect of higher state income tax rates associated with our Accessories

segment businesses offset by the beneficial effect in fiscal 2012 of revaluing our deferred tax assets at higher tax rate

levels based on future rates expected for the Company

Based on the results of operations noted above we reported an increase in consolidated net earnings of 94% at $14.5

million or $1.27 per diluted common share for fiscal 2012 as compared to $7.5 million or $0.67 per diluted share for

fiscal 2011

Fiscal 2012 Compared to Fiscal 2011 Results of Operations Footwear segment

Selected financial results for fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 were

%of %of

all amounts in 000s Fiscal 2012 Net Sales Fiscal 2011 Net Sales Increase

Net sales 123336 100.0 118844 100.0 4492

Gross profit 48901 39.6 41776 35.2 7125

Operatingprofit 28247 22.9 16909 14.2 11338

Net sales increased by 3.8% due primarily to higher shipments to customers in the department store and mass

merchandising channels offset in part by decreased shipments to customers in the specialty and independent store

channels

Gross profit increased in dollars and as percentage of net sales due to the increase in shipments for the period the

benefit of the non-recurrence of costs incurred during fiscal 2011 associated with expediting product to our customers

and lower freight costs incurred during fiscal 2012 to transport product from China to our warehouses

Operating profit increased due to increased shipments and gross profit as noted above and decrease of $2.9 million in

advertising and other marketing related expenses as well as improved efficiencies in SGA expenses from leveraging

existing resources to support our Footwear and Accessories segments

Fiscal 2012 Compared to Fiscal 2011 Results of Operations Accessories segment

%of %of

all amounts in 000s Fiscal 2012 Net Sales Fiscal 2011 Net Sales Increase

Net sales 32602 100.0 10724 100.0 21878

Grossprofit 18268 56.0 6387 59.6 11881

Operating profit 6096 18.7 2987 27.9 3109

Incremental sales from our Accessories segment for the periods presented reflected the benefit of sales for the full year in

fiscal 2012 in comparison to fiscal 2011 since we acquired the Foot Petals business at the end of January 2011 and the

Baggallini business at the end of March 2011

Gross profits in both dollars and as percentage of net sales to Accessory segment customers during the reported periods

were consistent with our expectations for this business segment with fiscal 2012 reflecting full annual sales over various

channels Fiscal 2012 SGA expenses included incremental spending in advertising which approximated $672 thousand

on an annualized basis
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Results of Operations Unallocated Corporate Expenses

Consistent with our internal reporting structure certain corporate expenses deemed applicable to the Company as whole

were not allocated to any business segment Such costs included those associated with the Companys corporate and

governance functions including the CEO the Chief Financial Officer and the Board of Directors as well as such expense

areas as annual accrued incentive bonus incentive stock compensation pension professional fees and similar corporate

expenses These unallocated costs are shown below

all amounts in 000s Fiscal 2012 Fiscal 2011 Increase

Unallocated corporate expenses 10970 8216 2754

The increase of $2.8 million primarily reflected higher annual incentive expense

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary source of revenue and cash flow is our operating activities in North America When cash inflows are less

than cash outflows we also have access to amounts under our New Facility subject to its terms as described below We

may seek to finance future capital investment programs through various methods including but not limited to cash flow

from operations and borrowings under our current or additional credit facilities

Our liquidity requirements arise from the funding of our working capital needs which include primarily inventory other

operating expenses and accounts receivable funding of capital expenditures and repayment of our indebtedness Most of

our product purchases from third-party manufacturers are acquired on an open account basis and to lesser extent

through trade letters of credit

Total cash and cash equivalents were $21.8 million at June 29 2013 compared to $16.1 million at June 30 2012 Short-

term investments were $17.7 million at June 29 2013 compared to $25.6 million at June 30 2012

At June 29 2013 as part of our cash management and investment program we maintained portfolio of $17.7 million in

short-term investments including $11.7 million in marketable investment securities consisting of variable rate demand

notes and $6.0 million in other short-term investments The marketable investment securities are classified as available-

for-sale These marketable investment securities are carried at cost which approximates fair value The other short-term

investments are classified as held-to-maturity securities and include several commercial paper investments which

matured by August 2013

Operating Activities

During fiscal 2013 our operations generated $9.6 million in cash This operating cash flow was primarily the result of

our net earnings of $13.3 million for the period adjusted for non-cash activities such as deferred income tax expense

of $325 thousand with an offsetting $286 thousand excess tax benefit credit recognized on stock options exercised and

restricted stock unit vested depreciation and amortization expense of $2.8 million stock-based compensation expense of

$1.3 million and $781 increase in customer-related return and program accruals changes in our working capital

accounts and payments on our pension and other obligations In fiscal 2013 significant changes in working capital

accounts included higher amounts of accounts receivable and inventory and lower amounts of trade payables and accrued

expenses

During fiscal 2012 our operations generated $25.3 million in cash This operating cash flow was primarily the result of

our net earnings of $14.5 million for the period adjusted for non-cash activities such as deferred income tax expense

of $976 thousand with an offsetting $123 thousand excess tax benefit credit recognized on stock options exercised and

restricted stock unit vested depreciation and amortization expense of $3.0 million stock-based compensation expense of

$1.3 million and $1.7 million decrease in customer-related return and program accruals changes in our working

capital accounts and payments on our pension and other obligations ln fiscal 2012 significant changes in working

capital accounts included lower amounts of accounts receivable and inventory and higher amounts of trade payables and

accrued expenses
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During fiscal 2011 our operations generated $2.5 million in cash This operating cash flow was primarily the result of

our net earnings of $7.5 million for the period adjusted for non-cash activities such as deferred income tax expense of

$932 thousand with an offsetting $128 thousand excess tax benefit credit recognized on stock options exercised and

restricted stock unit vested depreciation and amortization expense of $1.9 million and stock-based compensation expense

of $1.2 million changes in our working capital accounts and payments on our pension and other obligations In

fiscal 2011 significant changes in working capital accounts included higher amounts of inventory and lower amounts of

accrued expenses which were partially offset by lower amounts of accounts receivable and higher trade payables

Our working capital ratio which is calculated by dividing total current assets by total current liabilities was 4.21 at June

29 2013 and 3.51 at June 30 2012

Changes during fiscal 2013 in the primary components of our working capital accounts were as follows

c1 Gross accounts receivable increased by approximately $4.0 million during fiscal 2013 driven by the timing of

shipments to customers and the timing of cash collections and customer deductions

Inventories increased by $2.4 million in total with increases in both the Footwear and Accessories segments

during fiscal 2013 primarily reflecting accelerated purchases in order to mitigate cost pressures in both

product and logistics and to ensure on time delivery of product to our customers in the calendar 2013 fall

season

Accrued expenses decreased by $1.1 million during fiscal 2013 primarily due to lower incentive bonus

accruals in fiscal 2013 compared to fiscal 2012

Accounts payable decreased by $0.3 million during fiscal 2013 due primarily to the timing of and payment

for inventory purchased from third-party manufacturers

Investing Activities

During fiscal 2013 investing activities provided $5.6 million in cash We used $1.2 million in cash for acquisitions

completed during fiscal 2013 Sales and redemptions net of purchases of short-term investments generated $7.9 million

Capital expenditures were $1.1 million and primarily consisted of purchases of software and computer equipment as well

as leasehold improvements

During fiscal 2012 investing activities used $11.9 million in cash Purchases net of sales and redemptions of short-term

investments used $10.0 million Capital expenditures were $1.8 million and primarily consisted of purchases of software

and computer equipment as well as leasehold improvements

During fiscal 2011 investing activities used $36.0 million in cash We used $47.8 million in cash for acquisitions

completed during fiscal 2011 Sales and redemptions net of purchases of short-term investments generated $12.4

million Capital expenditures were $676 thousand and primarily consisted of building and leasehold improvements as

well as purchases of software and computer equipment

Financing activities

During fiscal 2013 financing activities used $9.6 million in cash with debt payments of $6.0 million and dividend

payments of $3.8 million offset by $311 thousand in funds provided through option exercises and related tax benefits on

option exercises and vesting of restricted stock units during the period

During fiscal 2012 financing activities used $6.4 million in cash with debt payments of $3.9 million and dividend

payments of $3.3 million offset by $827 thousand in funds provided through option exercises and related tax benefits on

option exercises and vesting of restricted stock units during the period

During fiscal 2011 financing activities provided $25.6 million in cash Debt proceeds of $30 million were obtained to

fund the acquisitions made during fiscal 2011 Debt payments of $1.5 million and dividend payments of $3.1 million

were made during the period
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2014 Liquidity

We believe our sources of cash and cash equivalents on hand and short-term investments will be adequate to fund our

operations and capital expenditures through fiscal 2014

Credit Agreement

In March 2011 we entered into an unsecured Credit Agreement the New Facility with The Huntington National Bank

Huntington The New Facility replaced the previously existing unsecured revolving credit agreement with Huntington

dated March 29 2007 as amended the Prior Credit Agreement which would have expired December 31 2011 The

Prior Credit Agreement with Huntington was terminated in connection with the New Facility

Under the terms of the New Facility Huntington is obligated to advance funds to us for period of three years under

revolving credit facility the Revolving Credit Facility We may have outstanding indebtedness of up to $5 million

under the Revolving Credit Facility from January through June of each calendar year and up to $10 million from July

through December of each calendar year Under the terms of the New Facility we may request that Huntington increase

the Revolving Credit Facility by an amount of up to $5 million The termination and maturity date of the Revolving

Credit Facility is March 2014 The interest rate on the Revolving Credit Facility is rate equal to LIBOR plus 1.75%

The Revolving Credit Facility must not have any outstanding borrowings for at least 30 consecutive days during each

period commencing on July and continuing through June 30 of the following year

The applicable interest rate on the Revolving Credit Facility based on 30-day LIBOR rate of 0.19% at June 29 2013 was

1.94% Additionally the Revolving Credit Facility requires the Company to pay quarterly unused line fee at the rate of

0.25% of the average unused Revolving Credit Facility balance During fiscal 2013 the Company did not have any

borowings under the Revolving Credit Facility and incurred unused line fees of $19 thousand We incurred commitment

fee of $25 thousand when the Revolving Credit Facility was signed This fee is being amortized over the term of the

Revolving Credit Facility

At June 29 2013 we had $5 million available under the Revolving Credit Facility

In addition under the terms of the New Facility Huntington provided us $30 million under term loan facility the Term

Loan Facility Under the Term Loan Facility Huntington disbursed $15 million on March 2011 and the remaining

$15 million on March 31 2011 Beginning on April 2011 we made and will continue to make equal monthly principal

payments in the amount of $357 thousand together with accrued interest beginning on April 2011 with the then

remaining outstanding balance and accrued interest due and payable on March 2016 The interest rate on the Term

Loan Facility is rate equal to LIBOR plus 1.85% Under the terms of the New Facility we entered into an interest rate

contract that provided for fixed interest rate of 3.94% on notional amount of at least 50% of the outstanding principal

balance of the Term Loan Facility

The applicable interest rate on the Term Loan Facility at June 29 2013 was 2.04% based on 30-day LIBOR rate of

0.19%

We paid Huntington one-time facility commitment fee of $75 thousand in connection with the Term Loan Facility and

this fee is being amortized over the term of the loan

Under the terms of the New Facility we are required to satisfy certain financial covenants including satisfying

minimumfixed charge coverage ratio test of not less than 1.1 to 1.0 which has been and will continue to be calculated

quarterly on trailing 12-month basis beginning with the fiscal quarter ended March 31 2012 satisfying funded debt

leverage ratio test of not greater than 2.25 to 1.00 which has been and will continue to be calculated quarterly beginning

with the fiscal quarter ended March 31 2012 and maintaining consolidated net worth of at least $52 million

increased annually by an amount equal to 50% of the Companys consolidated net earnings subsequent to June 29 2013

At June 29 2013 we were in compliance with all these financial covenants
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Other Short-term Debt

We previously borrowed against the cash surrender value of life insurance policies insuring our non-executive chairman

During fiscal 2013 we repaid the remaining balance of this indebtedness At June 30 2012 approximately $1.8 million

of this indebtedness was classified within short-term notes payable in our Consolidated Balance Sheet

Other Long-term Indebtedness and Current Installments of Long-term Debt

As of June 29 2013 we reported approximately $4.3 million as current installments of long-term debt under the Term

Loan Facility

Other Matters Impacting Liquidity and Capital Resources

Contractual Obligations

We have traditionally leased facilities under operating lease transactions for varying term lengths ranging generally from

two years
to seven years often with options for renewal On occasion we have also leased certain equipment utilizing

operating leases These leasing arrangements have allowed us to pay for the facilities and equipment over the time

periods they are utilized rather than committing our resources initially to acquire the facilities or equipment All leases

have been accounted for as operating leases consistent with the provisions of U.S Generally Accepted Accounting

Principles U.S GAAP Our off-balance sheet non-cancelable operating lease obligations are discussed in Note

Lease Commitments of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data of this 2013 Form 10-K

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations for both short-term and long-term obligations as of June 29

2013

Payments due by period

More

Less than than

Total year years Years years Other

in thousands of dollars

Short-Term Debt None None None None None None

Long-Term Debt Current and Non
Current Portions 20357 4286 16071 None None None

Other Long-Term Liabilities

reflected on the Consolidated

Balance Sheet of the Company 7165 7165

OTHER CONTRACTUAL
OBLIGATIONS

Operating Leases see also Note

of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements 758 557 201 None None None

Purchase obligations in the ordinary

course of business 36000 36000 None None None None

OFF-BALANCE SHEET

ARRANGEMENTS

None
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Interest has been excluded from the amount shown under Long-Term Debt Current and Non-Current Portions above

The interest amounts are determined using floating interest rate with 50% of the loan balance effectively hedged with

an interest rate contract which results in fixed annual interest rate of 3.94% on 50% of the loan balance

Other Long-Term Liabilities reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheet of the Company as of June 29 2013

represented accrued cumulative obligations under our Associates Retirement Plan of approximately $200 thousand

accrued cumulative obligations under our Supplemental Retirement Plan of approximately $6.6 million and various other

accruals of approximately $400 thousand The timing of future cash outflows related to most of these obligations is not

readily determinable as it is primarily dependent upon the annual actuarially-determined qualified pension plan

contributions as well as the timing of future associate retirements

We acquire inventory and merchandise from our suppliers in the ordinary course of business issuing both purchase

orders and to lesser extent letters of credit Commitments in the ordinary course of business outstanding as of June 29

2013 are included above There were no material outstanding commitments other than those represented as part of our

ordinary course of business
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Other Matters Relevant to Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Significant Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S GAAP requires
that we make certain estimates These

estimates can affect reported revenues expenses and results of operations as well as the reported values of certain assets

and liabilities We make these estimates based on information from as many resources both internal and external as are

available at the time After reasonably assessing the conditions that exist at the time we make these estimates and prepare

consolidated financial statements accordingly These estimates are made in consistent manner from period to period

based upon historical trends and conditions and after review and analysis of current events and circumstances We believe

these estimates reasonably reflect the current assessment of the financial impact of events whose actual outcomes will not

become known to us with certainty until sometime in the future

The following discussion of critical accounting policies is intended to bring to the attention of readers those accounting

policies that management believes are critical to the Companys consolidated financial statements and other financial

disclosures It is not intended to be comprehensive list of all of our significant accounting policies that are more fully

described in Notes through of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in this 2013 Form 10-K

summary of the critical accounting policies requiring management estimates follows

Revenue recognition We recognize revenue when the following criteria are met

goods are shipped from our warehouse and other third-party distribution locations at which point our

customers take ownership and assume risk of loss

collection of the relevant receivable is probable

persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists and

the sales price is fixed or determinable

In certain circumstances we sell products to customers under special arrangements which provide for return

privileges discounts promotions and other sales incentives When selling under these special arrangements at the

time we recognize revenue we reduce our measurement of revenue by an estimate of the potential future returns and

allowable retailer promotions and sales incentives and recognize corresponding reduction in reported trade accounts

receivable These estimates have traditionally been and continue to be sensitive to and dependent on variety of

factors including but not limited to quantities sold to our customers and the related selling and marketing support

programs channels of distribution sell-through rates at retail the acceptance of the styling of our products by

consumers the overall economic environment consumer confidence leading towards and through the holiday selling

season and other related factors

The estimates established for these allowances at the end of these reporting periods reflected our current practice of

collaborating closely with key retailing partners to offer the appropriate in-season consumer promotions and sales

incentives to achieve mutually satisfactory sell-through rates thus reducing or eliminating returns As of June 29

2013 our allowance for returns was $618 thousand hypothetical change of 10 percent in our returns allowance net

of the value of related inventory to be returned would have an impact on income before income taxes of

approximately $37 thousand As of June 29 2013 our allowance for promotions cooperative advertising and other

sales incentives was $1.9 million hypothetical change of 10 percent in this allowance would have an impact on

income before income taxes of $190 thousand

Due to the continuing seasonal nature of our business and the current economic climate it is possible that allowances

for returns promotions and other sales incentives and the related charges reported in our consolidated results of

operations could be different than those estimates noted above

We monitor the creditworthiness of our customers and the related collection of monies owed to us In circumstances

where we become aware of specific customers inability to meet its financial obligations specific reserve for

doubtful accounts is taken as reduction to accounts receivable to reduce the net recognized receivable to the amount

reasonably expected to be collected For all other customers we recognize estimated reserves for bad debts based on
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our historical collection experience the financial condition of our customers and evaluation of current economic

conditions and anticipated trends each of which is subjective and requires certain assumptions At the end of fiscal

2013 and fiscal 2012 our allowance for doubtful accounts was $46 thousand and $57 thousand respectively

Inventory valuation We value inventories using the lower of cost or market based upon the first-in first-out

FIFO costing method We evaluate our inventories for any reduction in realizable value in light of the prior

selling season the overall economic environment and our expectations
for the upcoming selling seasons and we

record the appropriate write-downs based on this evaluation At the end of fiscal 2013 and the end of fiscal 2012 we

estimated the FIFO cost of portion of our inventory exceeded the estimated net realizable value of that inventory by

$485 thousand and $582 thousand respectively The decrease from fiscal 2013 to fiscal 2012 reflected on-going

actions during fiscal 2013 to liquidate inventory related to discontinued licensed brands as well as our on-going

initiatives to properly manage our inventory investment

Deferred tax asset realizability and uncertain tax positions We make an assessment of the amount of income

taxes that will become currently payable or recoverable for the just concluded period and the deferred tax costs or

benefits that will become realizable for income tax purposes in the future as consequence of differences between

results of operations as reported in conformity with U.S GAAP and the requirements of the income tax codes

existing in the various jurisdictions where we operate In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets we consider

whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized The ultimate

realization of deferred tax assets is dependent on the generation of future taxable income Management considers

scheduled reversals of deferred items projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this

assessment In addition we make ongoing assessments of income tax exposures that may arise at the Federal state

or local tax levels U.S GAAP principles require that position taken or expected to be taken in tax return be

recognized in the financial statements when it is more likely than not i.e likelihood of more than 50% that the

position would be sustained upon examination by tax authorities recognized tax position is then measured at the

largest amount of benefit that has greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon settlement Any identified

exposures will be subjected to continuing assessment and estimates will be revised accordingly as information

becomes available to us We did not have any reserve for uncertain tax positions at the end of fiscal 2013 or fiscal

2012 since there were no tax positions at the federal state or local tax levels which did not meet the more likely than

not recognition threshold as determined by management

Impairment of lone-lived assets We review the carrying value of our long-lived assets including property plant

and equipment and intangible assets with finite useful lives for impairment whenever events or change in

circumstances warrant such review Impairment testing involves comparison of the sum of the undiscounted future

cash flows of the asset or asset group to its respective carrying amount If the sum of the undiscounted future cash

flows exceeds the carrying amount then no impairment exists If the carrying amount exceeds the sum of the

undiscounted future cash flows then second step is performed to determine the amount of impairment which would

be recorded as an impairment charge in our consolidated statements of income There were no impairment indicators

present during fiscal 2013

Purchased goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives such as trade names are not amortized but instead are

tested for impairment annually during the second fiscal quarter or more frequently if events or changes in

circumstances indicate that impairment may be present Application of goodwill impairment testing involves

judgment including but not limited to the identification of reporting units and estimating the fair value of each

reporting unit reporting unit is defined as an operating segment or one level below an operating segment

Goodwill is tested at the reporting unit level The goodwill impairment test consists of comparing the fair value of

each reporting unit determined using discounted cash flows to each reporting units respective carrying value If the

estimated fair value of reporting unit exceeds its carrying value there is no impairment If the carrying amount of

the reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair value goodwill impairment is indicated The amount of the impairment is

determined by comparing the fair value of the net assets of the reporting unit excluding goodwill to its estimated fair

value with the difference representing the implied fair value of the goodwill If the implied fair value of the goodwill

is lower than its carrying value the difference is recorded as an impairment charge in the consolidated statements of

income
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The Company adopted ASU 2011-8 IntangiblesGoodwill and Other Topic 350 Testing Goodwilifor

Impairment and early adopted ASU 20 12-2 Intangibles-Goodwill and Other Topic 350 Testing Indefinite-

Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment and performed one-step qualitative assessment for its annual impairment

test evaluation during the second quarter of fiscal 2013 on goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets In

conducting the qualitative assessment the Company considered relevant events and circumstances that affect the fair

value or carrying amount of reporting unit and indefinite life intangible assets Such events and circumstances could

include macroeconomic conditions industry and market considerations overall financial performance entity and

reporting unit specific events and capital markets pricing The Company considered the extent to which each of the

adverse events and circumstances identified affect the comparison of reporting unit and indefinite life intangible

assets fair value with its carrying amount The Company placed more weight on the events and circumstances that

most affect reporting unit and indefinite life intangible assets fair value or the carrying amount of its net assets The

Company considered positive and mitigating events and circumstances that may affect its determination of whether it

is more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit and indefinite life intangible assets are less than its

carrying amount The Company also considered recent valuations of its reporting units and indefinite life intangible

assets including the difference between the most recent fair value estimate and the carrying amount These factors

were all considered by management in reaching its conclusion about whether to perform the first step of the

impairment test If management had concluded that further testing was required the Company would have performed

quantitative valuation to estimate the fair value of its reporting units and indefinite life intangible assets

After assessing all relevant events and circumstances and their potential impact on significant inputs to the fair value

determination the Company determined that it is not more likely than not that the reporting units carrying value

exceeded its fair value during fiscal 2013

Pension liability Our noncontributory retirement plan for the benefit of salaried and nonsalaried employees the

Associates Retirement Plan ARP was frozen effective March 31 2004 and has remained frozen since that time

Our Supplemental Retirement Plan SRP for certain officers and other key employees as designated by our Board

of Directors was also frozen effective March 31 2004 The SRP is unfunded noncontributory and provides for the

payment of monthly retirement benefits

The actuarial valuations of our ARP and SRP benefit costs assets and obligations affect our financial position results

of operations and cash flow These valuations require the use of assumptions and long-range estimates These

assumptions include among others assumptions regarding interest and discount rates and assumed long-term rates of

return on pension plan assets We regularly evaluate these assumptions and estimates as new information becomes

available Changes in assumptions which may be caused by conditions in the debt and equity markets changes in

asset mix and plan experience could have material effect on our pension obligations and expenses and can affect

our net earnings assets and shareholders equity In addition changes in assumptions such as rates of return fixed

income rates used to value liabilities or declines in the fair value of plan assets may result in voluntary decisions or

mandatory requirements to make additional contributions to our ARP

The discount rate was determined based on an analysis of interest rates for high-quality long-term corporate debt at

each measurement date In order to appropriately match the bond maturities with expected future cash payments we
utilize differing bond portfolios to estimate the discount rates for the defined benefit plans The weighted average

discount rate used to determine the defined benefit plans obligation as of the balance sheet date is the rate in effect at

the measurement date The same rate is also used to determine the defined benefit plans expense for the following

fiscal year The long-term rate of return for the defined benefit plans assets is based on our historical experience the

defined benefit plans investment guidelines and our expectations for long-term rates of return The defined benefit

plans investment guidelines are established based upon an evaluation of market conditions tolerance for risk and

cash requirements for benefit payments Holding all other assumptions constant we estimate that 100 basis point

decrease in the expected discount rate would decrease our annual income before income tax by approximately $206

thousand and it would increase our total pension liability by approximately $4.1 million as of June 29 2013

We establish assumptions to measure our pension liabilities and project the long-term rate of return expected on the

invested pension assets in our qualified ARP Changes in assumptions which may be caused by conditions in the

debt and equity markets changes in asset mix and plan experience could have material effect on our pension

obligations and expenses and can affect our net income assets and shareholders equity Changes in assumptions
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may also result in voluntary or mandatory requirements to make additional contributions to our qualified
ARP These

assumptions are reviewed and reset as appropriate at the pension measurement date commensurate with the end of our

fiscal year end and we monitor these assumptions over the course of the fiscal year

Expected rate of return on ARP assets is also an important element of plan expense In fiscal 2013 we used 6.00% as

the rate of return on ARP assets To determine the rate of return on plan assets we consider the historical experience

and expected future performance of the plan assets as well as the current and expected allocation of the plan assets

Our ARPs asset allocation as of June 29 2013 the measurement date for fiscal 2013 was approximately 34% in

domestic and foreign equity investments 64% in domestic fixed income securities and 2% in cash investments This

asset allocation was in line with our investment policy guidelines and the transitioning of our asset portfolio
from an

equity dominant mix to debt dominant mix more in line with future cash outflows expected with our pension

payment obligations As this shifting in equity versus debt mix within our asset portfolio continues the return on

asset assumption will change as well We periodically evaluate the allocation of plan assets among the different

investment classes to ensure that they are within our investment policy guidelines Holding all other assumptions

constant we estimate that 100 basis point decrease in the expected rate of return on ARP assets would lower our

annual income before income tax by approximately $308 thousand

Stock-based compensation FASB ASC 718 the Stock Compensation topic requires
the recognition of the fair

value of stock-based compensation in the results of operations The Company historically has issued service based

awards with respect to which stock-based compensation expense is recognized over the requisite service period of the

individual grantees which generally equals the vesting period For example when such restricted stock units were

granted the fair value of the grant was determined based on the market value of the underlying common shares at the

date of grant if settlement was to occur by issuance of common shares and was adjusted for anticipated forfeitures

based on our historical experience and management judgment The Company also grants performance-based

restricted stock units where defined portion of the award if earned is to be settled in common shares and portion

is to be settled in cash with the amount to be paid equivalent to the market value of Company common shares

underlying the units granted at the time of settlement For restricted stock units to be settled in common shares or by

payment of cash equivalent in market value to the common shares underlying the restricted stock units vesting was

based on achievement of earnings per share objectives for the year of grant as well as service requirements All grants

have three-year terms over which settlement is to occur in pro rata fashion Forfeiture assumptions based on

experience and expectations are used in estimating and recognizing compensation expense over the term of these

grants The time-based portion and the portion of the performance-based award to be settled by cash payment are

recognized in expense ratably over the three-year term of the grant with expense related to restricted stock units

underlying the cash payment portion adjusted based on changes in market value of common shares over that period

prior to settlement The portion of the performance-based award to be settled by issuance of our common shares is

recognized in expense over the grant term using tranche method for the respective segments expected to be settled

Other There are various other accounting policies
that also require managements judgment We follow these

policies consistently from year to year and period to period For an additional discussion of all of our significant

accounting policies please see Notes through of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Actual results may vary from these estimates as consequence of activities after the period-end estimates have been

made These subsequent activities will have either positive or negative impact upon the results of operations in

period subsequent to the period when we originally made the estimate

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

See Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data in this 2013 Form 10-K for disclosure of any significant recently issued accounting standards

that as of June 29 2013 would impact the Company when these standards are implemented

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Interest Rates

Our principal market risk exposure relates to the impact of changes in short-term interest rates that may result from the

floating rate nature of the Companys New Facility At June 29 2013 we had $20.4 million in acquisition financing
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related long-term debt outstanding under the New Facility and no outstanding balance on the revolving credit portion of

the New Facility Based on our projected funding needs for operations during fiscal 2014 we do not expect any

significant borrowings under the revolving credit portion of our New Facility With respect to the long-term debt under

the New Facility we entered into an interest rate contract which matches the loan term for 50% of the outstanding loan

balance and this contract fixes our interest rate on that 50% portion to fixed annual interest rate of 3.94% We typically

do not hedge our exposure to floating interest rates in the normal course of business

Interest rate changes impact the level of earnings for short-term investments Changes in long-term interest rates also

affect the measurement of pension liabilities performed on an annual basis

Market Risk Sensitive Instruments Foreign Currency

During fiscal 2013 substantially all of our sales were conducted in North America and all were denominated in U.S

Dollars At the end of fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 the Company did not have any foreign exchange contracts

outstanding
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Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

R.G Barry Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of R.G Barry Corporation and subsidiaries the

Company as of June 29 2013 and June 30 2012 and the related consolidated statements of income comprehensive

income shareholders equity and cash flows for the fiscal years ended June 29 2013 June 30 2012 and July 2011

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We

believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of R.G Barry Corporation and subsidiaries as of June 29 2013 and June 30 2012 and the results of their

operations and their cash flows for the fiscal years ended June 29 2013 June 30 2012 and July 2011 in conformity

with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States R.G Barry Corporations internal control over financial reporting as of June 29 2013 based on the criteria

established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework 1992 issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of

the Treadway Commission COSO and our report dated September 11 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion on the

effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting

Is KPMG LLP

Columbus Ohio

September 112013

37



R.G BARRY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

in thousands

ASSETS June 29 2013 June 30 2012

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 21806 16112

Short-term investments 17694 25599
Accounts receivable

Trade less allowances of $2567 and $1786 respectively 16593 13011

Other 162 165

Inventory 24239 21149
Deferred tax assets 2559 2190
Prepaid expenses 1111 674

Total current assets 84164 78900

Property plant and equipment at cost 13316 12238

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 9138 8052
Net property plant and equipment 4178 4186

Deferred tax assets-noncurrent 1896 4043
Goodwill 15622 15510
Trade names 9200 9200
Other intangible assets net of accumulated amortization of $4563 and 12112 13530

$2798 respectively

Other assets 3081 2897
Total assets 130253 128266

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current liabilities

Short-term notes payable 1750

Current installments of long-term debt 4286 4286
Accounts payable 10655 10962
Accrued

expenses 4899 5701

Total current liabilities 19840 22699

Long-term debt excluding current installments 16071 20357
Accrued retirement costs and other 7165 10803

Total liabilities 43076 53859

Commitments and contingencies

Shareholders equity

Preferred shares $1 par value per share Authorized 3775 Class

shares 225 Series II Junior Participating Class shares and 1000

Class shares none issued

Common shares $1 par value per share Authorized 22500 shares

issued and outstanding 11291 and 11182 shares respectively

excluding treasury shares of 1085 and 1048 respectively 11291 11182

Additional capital in excess of par value 23282 22281

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 9410 11679
Retained earnings 62014 52623

Total shareholders equity 87177 74407
Total liabilities and shareholders equity 130253 128266

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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R.G BARRY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements ofIncome

Fiscal Years Ended June 29 2013 June 30 2012 and July 2011

in thousands except per common share data

2013 2012 2011

Net sales 147013 155938 $129568

Cost of sales 83069 88770 81405

Gross profit
63944 67168 48163

Selling general and administrative expenses
42964 43795 36483

Operating profit
20980 23373 11680

Interest income 110 131 163

Interest expense
720 895 370

Other income 1141 651 365

Income before income tax 21511 23260 11838

Income tax expense
8254 8711 4328

Net earnings
13257 14549 7510

Net earnings per common share

Basic 1.17 1.30 0.68

Diluted
1.15 1.27 0.67

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

Basic 11352 11207 11097

Diluted 11530 11414 11227

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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R.G BARRY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Fiscal Years Ended June 29 2013 June 30 2012 and July 2011

in thousands

2013 2012 2011

Net earnings 13257 14549 7510

Other comprehensive income adjustments

Cash flow hedging derivative

Reclassification for interest paid on interest rate contract 212 250 94

Income tax effect 82 97 36
Unrealized loss on interest contract 41 458 350

Income tax effect 15 177 131

Total from cash flow hedging derivatives 104 128 161

Pension plans

Reclasification of actuarial loss 1799 1377 1219

Income tax effect 702 537 451
Prior service cost amortization 13 42

Income tax effect 16
Deferred net gain loss on assets and liabilities 1751 3536 2729

Income tax effect 683 1379 1010
Total from pension plans 2165 1309 2513

Other comprehensive income loss 2269 1437 2352

Comprehensive income 15526 13112 9862

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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R.G BARRY CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements ofShareholders Equity

Fiscal Years Ended June 29 2013 June 30 2012 and July 2011

in thousands

Additional

capital in

Common excess of par

shares value

Accumulated

other

comprehensive

Net

Retained shareholders

earnin2s euitv

Balance at July 2010 $10930 $19195 12594 37065 54596

Net earnings

Other comprehensive income

Stock-based compensation expense on equity awards

Stock-based compensation tax benefit realized

Unrestricted common shares issued restricted stock

units vested and stock options exercised net of

common shares withheld for taxes

Dividends declared at $0.28 per common share

1186

128

Balance at July 2011 $11053 $20271 $10242 $41441 $62523

1107

123

129 780

14549 14549

1437
1107

123

Balance at June 30 2012 $1L182 $22281 11.679 52.623 74.407

1080

286

13257 13257

2269

1080

286

Balance at June 29 2013 11.291 $23282 $9.410 $62014 87.177

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

123 238

7510 7510

2352 2352

1186

128

115
3.134 3.134

Net earnings

Other comprehensive loss

Stock-based compensation expense on equity awards

Stock-based compensation tax benefit realized

Unrestricted common shares issued restricted stock

units vested and stock options exercised net of

common shares withheld for taxes

Dividends declared at $0.30 per common share

1437

Net earnings

Other comprehensive income

Stock-based compensation expense on equity awards

Stock-based compensation tax benefit realized

Unrestricted common shares issued restricted stock

units vested and stock options exercised net of

common shares withheld for taxes

Dividends declared at $0.34 per common share

909

3.367 3.367

2269

109 365 256
3866 3866
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R.G BARRY CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Fiscal Years Ended June 29 2013 June 30 2012 and July 2011

in thousands

2013 2012 2011

Operating activities

Net earnings 13257 14549 7510

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by

operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 2807 3045 1891

Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment net 48 10

Deferred income tax expense 325 976 932

Gross excess tax benefit from exercise of stock options and

vesting of restricted stock units 286 123 128
Stock-based compensation expense on equity awards and issuance

of unrestricted stock for services rendered 1337 1327 1186

Change in customer return and program accruals 781 1736 76

Changes in

Accounts receivable gross 4040 379 420

Inventory 2433 4350 7089
Prepaid expenses and other assets 785 200 42

Accounts payable 321 1080 4414
Accrued

expenses 1083 3875 3038
Accrued retirement costs net 65 2385 3659
Other liabilities 18 268 29

Net cash provided by operating activities 9642 25317 2538

Investing activities

Funds used in purchase of short-term investments 22885 42435 9865
Proceeds from the sale of short-term investments 30790 32401 22254
Purchases of property plant and equipment 1055 1834 676
Acquisitions 1.236 ________ 47750

Net cash provided by used in investing activities 5.6 14 11.868 36037

Financing activities

Proceeds from long-term debt 30000

Repayment of short-term and long-term debt 6036 3929 1525
Gross excess tax benefit from exercise of stock options and vesting

of restricted stock units 286 123 128

Proceeds from common shares issued 25 704 107

Dividends paid 3837 3342 3092

Net cash used in provided by financing activities 9562 6444 25.6 18

Net increase decrease in cash and cash

equivalents 5694 7005 7881

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 16112 9.107 16988

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
year 1.806 16.112 9107

Supplemental cash flow disclosures

Interest paid 754 779 352

Income taxes paid net of taxes refunded 7670 7235 2599

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principal Business Activity

R.G Barry Corporation an Ohio corporation is engaged with its subsidiaries including Foot

Petals Inc and Baggallini Inc collectively the Company in designing sourcing

marketing and distributing footwear foot and shoe care products and hand bags tote bags

and other travel accessories The Company operates in two reportable segments

Footwear that encompasses primarily slippers sandals hybrid and fashion footwear and

Accessories with products including foot and shoe care products handbags tote bags and

other travel accessories The Companys products are sold predominantly in North America

through the accessory sections of department stores national chain stores warehouse clubs

specialty and independent stores television shopping networks e-tailinglinternet based

retailers discount stores and mass merchandising channels of distribution

The Companys reporting period is fifty-two-week or fifty-three-week period fiscal

year ending annually on the Saturday nearest June 30 For definitional purposes as used

herein the terms listed below include the respective periods noted

Fiscal 2013 52 weeks ended June 29 2013

Fiscal 2012 52 weeks ended June 30 2012

Fiscal 2011 52 weeks ended July 2011

Principles of Consolidation

The financial statements include the accounts of the Company All inter-company balances

and transactions where appropriate have been eliminated in consolidation

Use of Estimates

The Companys financial statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles GAAP and accordingly require management to make

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods Actual results could

differ from those estimates

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes deposits with banks and other financial institutions which are accessible at any

time without prior notice or penalty Cash equivalents include $18539 and $13620 in

money market accounts at June 29 2013 and June 30 2012 respectively with original

maturities of three months or less

Short-Term Investments

At June 29 2013 as part
of its cash management and investment program the Company

maintained portfolio of $17694 in short-term investments including $11705 in marketable

investment securities consisting of variable rate demand notes and $5989 in other short-term

investments The marketable investment securities are classified as available-for-sale These

marketable investment securities are carried at cost which approximates fair value The

other short-term investments are classified as held-to-maturity securities and include several

commercial paper investments which matured in August 2013 Held-to-maturity debt
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securities are those debt securities as to which the Company has the ability and intent to hold

until maturity Held-to-maturity debt securities are recorded at amortized cost adjusted for

the amortization or accretion of premiums or discounts

At June 30 2012 as part of its cash management and investment program the Company
maintained portfolio of $25599 in short-term investments including $17145 in marketable

investment securities consisting of variable rate demand notes and $8454 in other short-term

investments The marketable investment securities are classified as available-for-sale These

marketable investment securities are carried at cost which approximates fair value The

other short-term investments are classified as held-to-maturity securities and include several

commercial paper investments which matured in August 2012 Held-to-maturity debt

securities are those debt securities as to which the Company has the ability and intent to hold

until maturity Held-to-maturity debt securities are recorded at amortized cost adjusted for

the amortization or accretion of premiums or discounts

Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market with cost determined on the first-in first-

out FIFO basis

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense has been computed using the straight-line method

over the estimated useful lives of the assets Depreciation and amortization expense is

reflected as part of selling general and administrative expenses in the accompanying

consolidated statements of income For fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 depreciation

expenses of $1086 $1348 and $1378 respectively have been reported in selling general

and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income

Trademarks Patents and Acquired Customer Relationships

The Company incurs costs in obtaining and perfecting trademarks and patents related to its

products and production-related processes These costs are generally amortized over period

subsequent to asset acquisition not to exceed five years The value of acquired customer

relationships is amortized over their projected economic life using the straight-line method

Revenue Recognition and Trade Accounts Receivable

The Company recognizes revenue when the following criteria are met

goods are shipped from its warehouse and other third-party distribution locations at

which point the Companys customers take ownership and assume risk of loss

collection of the relevant receivable is probable

persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists and

the sales price is fixed or determinable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest In

certain circumstances the Company sells to its customers under special arrangements which

in certain instances provide for return privileges as well as discounts promotions and other

sales incentives When selling under these special arrangements the Company reduces its

measurement of revenue by the estimated cost of potential future returns and allowable

retailer promotions and sales incentives The Company bases its estimates for sales returns
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and promotions and sales incentive allowances on current and historical trends and

experience

Allowances established for returns were approximately $618 and $587 at the end of fiscal

2013 and fiscal 2012 respectively and are classified in trade accounts receivable on the

accompanying consolidated balance sheets these allowances were for specific spring season

programs initiated with certain customers in each respective fiscal year During fiscal 2013

and fiscal 2012 the Company recorded approximately $2192 and $4654 respectively as the

sales value of merchandise returned by customers

Allowances for promotions cooperative advertising and other sales incentives established at

the end of fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012 were approximately $1903 and $1142 respectively

and are classified in trade accounts receivable on the accompanying consolidated balance

sheets Charges to revenue for consumer promotion cooperative advertising and other sales

incentive activities including support for display fixtures for fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and

fiscal 2011 were approximately $8075 $10611 and $13828 respectively

Distribution and Warehousing Costs

Distribution and warehousing costs for finished product including occupancy costs are

classified within selling general and administrative expenses in the accompanying

consolidated statements of income These costs amounted to $7256 $7763 and $6872 for

fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 respectively

Advertising and Promotion

The Company uses variety of programs to advertise and promote the sale of its products to

customers and consumers Customer advertising is expensed as incurred The cost of

consumer advertising is expensed when first used For fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and fiscal

2011 advertising and promotion expenses of $2290 $3308 and $4924 respectively have

been reported in selling general and administrative expenses in the accompanying

consolidated statements of income

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between

the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective

tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards Deferred tax assets and liabilities

are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years
in

which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled The effect on

deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period

that includes the enactment date

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets the Companys management considers

whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be

realized The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent on the generation of

future taxable income or the ability to carry back tax losses for recovery against prior years

with taxable income Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred items

projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment

The Company recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more

likely than not of being sustained Recognized income tax positions are measured at the
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largest amount that is greater than 50% likely of being realized Changes in recognition or

measurement are reflected in the period in which the change in judgment occurs The

Companys policy is to recognize and classifi any interest and penalties associated with

unrecognized tax benefits relating to uncertain tax positions as part of the Companys income

tax expense

Per Common Share Information

Basic net earnings per common share are based on the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during each reporting period Diluted net earnings per common share are

based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding as well as when their

effect is dilutive potential common shares consisting of certain common shares subject to

stock options and restricted stock units

Shareholders Equity

The Company recognizes the stock-based compensation expense over the requisite service

period of the individual grantees which generally equals the vesting period All of the stock-

based compensation is accounted for as an equity instrument and expense is recognized over

the service period for the entire award This recognition is subject to the requirement that the

cumulative amount of stock-based compensation expense recognized at any point in time

must be at least equal to the portion of the grant-date fair value of the award that is vested at

that date The Company also issues performance-based restricted stock units where

defined portion of the award if earned is to be settled in common shares and portion is to

be settled in cash with the amount to be paid equivalent in market value to the common
shares underlying the restricted stock units granted at the time of settlement This cash
portion of the award is treated as liability award with mark to market adjustments made in

expense recognition over the term of the award for those units to be settled in cash payment
to the respective grantee The time-based portion and the portion of the performance-based

award to be settled by cash payment are recognized in expense ratably over the three-year

term of the grant with expense related to units underlying the cash payment portion adjusted

based on changes in market value of common shares over that period prior to settlement The

portion of the performance-based award to be settled by issuance of common shares is

recognized in expense over the grant term using tranche method for the respective segments

expected to be settled

The R.G Barry Corporation Amended and Restated 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan the
2005 Plan is the only equity-based compensation plan under which future awards may be

made to employees of the Company and non-employee directors of R.G Barry Corporation

other than the employee stock purchase plan in which employees of the Company may
participate as described in further detail in Note 12 Shareholders Equity The

Companys previous equity-based compensation plans remained in effect with respect to the

then outstanding awards following the approval of the 2005 Plan

During fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 the Company recognized net excess federal

state and local tax benefit of $286 $123 and $128 respectively associated with stock-based

compensation and recognized this excess benefit as an addition to the paid-in capital account

Excess tax benefits are recognized only when they impact taxes paid or payable

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value measurements of assets and liabilities are recognized or disclosed in the financial

statements based upon fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques
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used to measure fair value The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted

prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities Level measurements and the

lowest priority to measurements involving significant unobservable inputs Level

measurements The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows

Level inputs are quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access at the measurement

date

Level inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level that

are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly

Level inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which fair value measurement falls is based on

the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety

Impairment ofLong-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of

The carrying value of long-lived assets including property plant and equipment and

intangible assets with finite useful lives are reviewed for impairment whenever events or

changes in circumstances warrant such review Impairment testing involves comparison of

the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows of the asset or asset group to its respective

carrying amount If the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows exceeds the carrying

amount then no impairment exists If the carrying amount exceeds the sum of the

undiscounted future cash flows then second step is performed to determine the amount of

impairment which would be recorded as an impairment charge in the consolidated statements

of income There were no impairment indicators present during the fiscal year ended June

29 2013

Assets to be disposed of if any would be presented separately in the consolidated balance

sheets reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell and would

no longer be depreciated

Purchased goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives such as trade names are not

amortized but instead are tested for impairment annually during the second fiscal quarter or

more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that impairment may be

present Application of goodwill impairment testing involves judgment including but not

limited to the identification of reporting units and estimating the fair value of each reporting

unit reporting unit is defined as an operating segment or one level below an operating

segment Goodwill is tested at the reporting unit level The goodwill impairment test

consists of comparing the fair value of each reporting unit determined using discounted cash

flows to each reporting units respective carrying value If the estimated fair value of

reporting unit exceeds its carrying value there is no impairment If the carrying amount of

the reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair value goodwill impairment is indicated The

amount of the impairment is determined by comparing the fair value of the net assets of the

reporting unit excluding goodwill to its estimated fair value with the difference representing

the implied fair value of the goodwill If the implied fair value of the goodwill is lower than

its carrying value the difference is recorded as an impairment charge in the consolidated

statements of income

The Company adopted ASU 2011-8 IntangiblesGoodwill and Other Topic 350

Testing Goodwill for Impairment and early adopted ASU 20 12-2 Intangibles-Goodwill
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and Other Topic 350 Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment

and performed qualitative assessment for its annual impairment test evaluation during the

second quarter of fiscal 2013 on goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets In conducting

the qualitative assessment the Company considered relevant events and circumstances that

affect the fair value or carrying amount of reporting unit and indefinite life intangible

assets Such events and circumstances could include macroeconomic conditions industry and

market considerations overall financial performance entity and reporting unit specific

events and capital markets pricing The Company considered the extent to which each of the

adverse events and circumstances identified affect the comparison of reporting unit and

indefinite life intangible assets fair value with its carrying amount The Company placed

more weight on the events and circumstances that most affect reporting unit and indefinite

life intangible assets fair value or the carrying amount of its net assets The Company
considered positive and mitigating events and circumstances that may affect its determination

of whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit and indefinite life

intangible assets are less than its carrying amount The Company also considered recent

valuations of its reporting units and indefinite life intangible assets including the difference

between the most recent fair value estimate and the carrying amount These factors were all

considered by management in reaching its conclusion about whether to perform the first step

of the impairment test If management had concluded that further testing was required the

Company would have performed quantitative valuation to estimate the fair value of its

reporting units and indefinite life intangible assets

After assessing all relevant events and circumstances and their potential impact on significant

inputs to the fair value determination the Company determined that it is not more likely than

not that the reporting units carrying value exceeded its fair value during fiscal 2013

Allowances Granted to Resellers

The Company provided consideration to customers in the form of discounts and other

allowances which were reflected as reduction of net sales of approximately $9607 $9746
and $12150 for fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 respectively

Derivative Instruments and Hedging

derivative instrument an interest rate contract is used as part of the Companys interest

rate risk management strategy to manage cash flow exposure from changes in interest rates

An interest rate contract generally involves the exchange of fixed-rate and variable-rate

interest payments between two parties based on common notional principal amount and

maturity date Under an interest rate contract the Company agrees with another party to

exchange at specified intervals the difference between fixed-rate and floating-rate interest

amounts which is calculated based on an agreed-upon notional amount derivative

instrument deemed highly effective qualifies for hedge accounting treatment under GAAP
and accordingly the effective portion of unrealized gains and losses on interest rate swaps

accounted for as cash flow hedge is deferred as component of accumulated other

comprehensive income loss Any deferred portion is component of interest expense when

the interest expense is incurred Any ineffective portion is directly recorded as component
of interest expense

At the end of each quarter the interest rate contract is recorded on the consolidated balance

sheet at fair value and re-tested under GAAP criteria to determine and/or reconfirm status

with regards to being an effective cash flow hedge If determined to be effective any gain or

loss outstanding on the interest rate contract is recorded to other comprehensive income
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loss If some or the entire interest rate contract is deemed ineffective as cash flow hedge

any gain or loss on the ineffective portion of the interest rate contract is recognized

inmiediately in earnings

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In December 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-11 Balance Sheet Topic 210 Disclosures

about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities This update requires additional disclosures about

offsetting and related arrangements on assets and liabilities to enable users of financial

statements to understand the effect of such arrangements on an entitys financial position as

reported This amendment is effective for fiscal 2014 and adoption of this standard change

will only affect the footnote disclosures within the consolidated financial statements Once

adopted these disclosure provisions will apply retrospectively
for all comparative periods

presented

In February 2013 the FASB issued ASU 2013-2 Comprehensive Income Reporting of

Amounts Reclassf led Out ofAccumulated Other Comprehensive Income This update

requires that the effect of significant reclassifications out of accumulated other

comprehensive income be reported on the respective line items in net earnings if the amount

being reclassified is required under U.S generally accepted principles to be reclassified in its

entirety in the same reporting period to net earnings For reclassifications involving other

amounts cross references would be required to other disclosures provided under generally

accepted accounting principles on such items This update is effective prospectively for

annual reporting periods beginning after December 15 2012 and interim periods within those

years Since this update addresses only financial reporting disclosures the Company does not

expect it to have direct material impact on the Companys financial statements

49



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Barry Corporation and Subsidiaries

dollar amounts in thousands except per common share data

Fair Value Measurements

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash cash equivalents short-term investments accounts receivable accounts payable accrued

expenses and short-term notes payable as reported in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair value because of the short-term maturity of those instruments The fair

value of the Companys long-term debt is based on the present value of expected cash flows

considering expected maturities and using current interest rates available to the Company for

borrowings with similar terms The canying amount of the Companys long-term debt

approximates its fair value The fair value of the Companys long-term debt is disclosed in Note

-- Short-term Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt

The following table presents assets and liabilities that were measured at fair value on recurring

basis at June 29 2013

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Usin

Assets

Available-for-sale

securities

Total

Liabilities

Interest rate

contract

Total

Carrying Amount

11705

11705

301

301

Quoted Prices

in Active

Markets for

Identical

Assets

Level

Significant

Other

Observable

Inputs

Level

11705

11705

301

301

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs

Level

The following table presents assets and liabilities that were measured at fair value on recurring

basis at June 30 2012

Fair Value Measurements at Reportina Date Usin2

Assets

Carrying Amount

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets

for Identical

Assets

Level

Significant

Other

Observable

Inputs

Level

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs

Level

17145

17145

472

472

Available-for-sale

securities

Total

Liabilities

Interest rate contract

Total

17145

17145

472

472
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Inventory

Inventory by category at June 29 2013 and June 30 2012 consisted of the following

2013 2012

Raw materials 666

Finished goods 24239 20483

Total Inventory 24239 21149

Inventory was valued at the lower of cost or market at the end of fiscal 2013 and the end of fiscal

2012 adjustments to market at the end of each of these periods were $485 and $582 respectively

Inventory adjustments to reduce cost to market recognized as part of cost of sales were $560

$776 and $2114 in fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 respectively

Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment at cost at June 29 2013 and June 30 2012 consisted of the

following
Estimated

2013 2012 lifeinyears

Land and improvements 290 279 515

Buildings and improvements 3782 3782 545

Machinery and equipment 8114 6050 210

Leasehold improvements 960 906 26
Construction in progress 170 1221

Total property plant and equipment 13316 12238

Less total accumulated depreciation 9138 8052

Net property plant and equipment 4178 4186

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Company uses the acquisition method of accounting for any business acquisitions and

recognizes intangible assets separately from goodwill The acquired assets and assumed liabilities

in an acquisition are measured and recognized based on their estimated fair value at the date of

acquisition with goodwill representing the excess of the consideration transferred over the fair

value of the identifiable net assets

Goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets included the following

Goodwill Trade names

Balanceasofiuly220l1 15510 9200

Acquired during fiscal 2012

Balance as of June 30 2012 15510 9200

Acquired during fiscal 2013 112

Balance as of June 29 2013 15622 9200
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Other intangible assets included the following

June 29 2013

Weighted

average Gross

amortization Carrying Accumulated Net carrying

period amount amortization amount

Amortizing intangible assets

Customer relationships 9.4 years 15738 3901 11837

Trademarks patents and

fees years 937 662 275

Total amortizing

intangible assets 16675 4563 12112

June 30 2012

Weighted

average Gross

amortization Carrying Accumulated Net carrying

period amount amortization amount

Amortizing intangible assets

Customer relationships 9.4 years 15600 2198 13402

Trademarks patents and

fees years 728 600 128

Total amortizing

intangible assets 16328 2798 13530

The Company recognized aggregate customer relationships and trademarks patents and fees

amortization expense of $1765 $1739 and $625 in fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011

respectively and reported that expense as part of selling general and administrative expenses in the

accompanying consolidated statements of income

Based on the Companys amortization methods remaining customer relationships and trademarks

patents and fees costs will be recognized as amortization expense of $1798 $1789 $1780 $1766

and $1549 in each of the next five years respectively The Company would accelerate the

expensing of these costs should circumstances change and an impairment condition be determined

for customer relationships trademarks or patents
that have remaining value

Short-term Notes Payable and Long-term Debt

On March 2011 the Company and The Huntington National Bank Huntington entered into

an unsecured Credit Agreement the New Facility The New Facility replaced the previously

existing unsecured revolving credit agreement between the Company and Huntington dated March

29 2007 as amended the Prior Credit Agreement which would have expired December 31

2011 The Prior Credit Agreement with Huntington was terminated in connection with the New

Facility

Under the terms of the New Facility Huntington is obligated to advance funds to the Company for

period of three years under revolving credit facility the Revolving Credit Facility The

Company may have outstanding indebtedness of up to $5000 under the Revolving Credit Facility
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from January through June of each calendar year and up to $10000 from July through December of

each calendar year Under the terms of the New Facility the Company may request that

Huntington increase the Revolving Credit Facility by an amount of up to $5000 The termination

and maturity date of the Revolving Credit Facility is March 2014 The interest rate on the

Revolving Credit Facility is rate equal to the 30-day LIBOR rate plus 1.75% and the applicable

rate on this Revolving Credit Facility was 1.94% at June 29 2013 Additionally the Company

agreed to pay quarterly fee equal to 0.25% of the daily average unused amount of the Revolving

Credit Facility as well as one-time $25 deemed to be paid facility fee effective as of March

2011 in connection with the Revolving Credit Facility The facility fee is being amortized over the

term of the Revolving Credit Facility Further the Revolving Credit Facility must be without any

outstanding borrowings for at least 30 consecutive days during each period commencing on July

and continuing through June 30 of the following year At June 29 2013 there were no outstanding

borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility At June 29 2013 the Company had available

borrowing capacity under the Revolving Credit Facility of $5000

Under the terms of the New Facility the Company borrowed $30000 in funds made available

under term loan facility the Term Loan Facility Under the Term Loan Facility Huntington

disbursed $15000 on March 2011 and the remaining $15000 on March 31 2011 The Company

started making equal monthly principal payments in the amount of $357 together with accrued

interest beginning on April 2011 with the then remaining outstanding balance and accrued

interest due and payable on March 2016 The interest rate under the Term Loan Facility is rate

equal to LIBOR plus 1.85% As required under the terms of the New Facility the Company

entered into an interest rate contract that provided for fixed interest rate of 3.94% on notional

amount equal to fifty percent of the outstanding principal balance of the term loan See Note --

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company paid Huntington one-time facility commitment fee of $75 in connection with the

Term Loan Facility and this fee is being amortized over the term of the term loan The applicable

interest rate on the Term Loan Facility at June 29 2013 was 2.04% based on 30-day LIBOR rate

of .19% on that date

Under the terms of the New Facility the Company is required to satisfy certain financial covenants

including satisfying minimum fixed charge coverage ratio test of not less than 1.1 to 1.0

which has been and will continue to be calculated quarterly on trailing 12-month basis beginning

with the fiscal quarter ended March 31 2012 satisfying funded debt leverage ratio test of not

greater than 2.25 to 1.00 which has been and will continue to be calculated quarterly beginning

with the fiscal quarter ended on March 31 2012 and maintaining consolidated net worth of at

least $52000 increased annually by an amount equal to 50% of the Companys consolidated net

earnings subsequent to June 29 2013 At June 29 2013 the Company was in compliance with all

of these financial covenants

The fair value of the Companys long-term debt is based upon the present value of expected cash

flows considering expected maturities and using current interest rates available to the Company for

borrowings with similar terms The carrying amount of the Companys long-term debt

approximates its fair value Long-term debt consisted of the following

June 29 2013 June 30 2012

Long-term debt 20357 24643

Less current installments 4286 4286

Long-term debt excluding current installments 16071 20357
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The aggregate minimum principal maturities of the long-term debt for each of the next three years

following fiscal 2013 are as follows

2014 4286

2015 4286

2016 3571

2016 due at end of term loan 8.214

$_2O3 57

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company may utilize derivative financial instruments to manage exposure to certain risks

related to its ongoing operations The primary risk managed through the use of derivative

instruments is interest rate risk In January 2011 the Company entered into an interest rate contract

with an initial notional amount of $15000 and maturity date of March 2016 to hedge the

changes in cash flows attributable to changes in the LIBOR rate associated with the Term Loan

Facility Under this interest rate contract the Company pays fixed interest rate of 3.94% and

receives variable rate based on LIBOR plus 1.85% The notional amount of this interest rate

contract is required to be 50% of the amount of the term loan through the expiration of the term

loan under the Term Loan Facility described in Note -- Short-term Notes Payable and Long-

term Debt

The Companys objective is to manage the impact of interest rate changes on cash flows and the

market value of its borrowings under the floating rate term loan In addition the Company may

enter into interest rate contracts to further manage exposure to interest rate variations related to

borrowings and to lower overall borrowing costs The Company does not use derivative

instruments for trading or speculative purposes The Companys derivative instrument is

designated as hedging instrument which is adjusted to fair value at the end of each reporting

period with the effective portion of the adjustment recorded to other comprehensive income Any

ineffective portion is recorded in earnings

The Company is exposed to counterparty credit risk on any derivative instrument Accordingly the

Company has established and maintains strict counterparty credit guidelines and enters into any

derivative instrument only with major financial institution The Company does not have

significant exposure to any counterparty and management believes the risk of loss is remote and in

any event would not be material

Refer to Note -- Fair Value Measurements for additional information regarding the fair value

of the derivative instrument

The following table summarizes the fair value of the Companys derivative instrument and the line

items in which it was recorded in the consolidated balance sheets at June 29 2013 and June 30

2012
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Liability Derivative Fair Value

Balance Sheet Location at June 29 2013 at June 30 2012

Derivative designated as

hedging instrument

Interest rate contract Accrued expenses 156 186

Accrued retirement costs

and other 145 268

301 472

Cash Flow Hedges

The Company may enter into derivative instruments to hedge exposure to changes in cash flows

attributable to interest rate fluctuations associated with certain forecasted transactions These

derivative instruments are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges Accordingly the effective

portion of the gain or loss on any such derivative instrument is reported as component of other

comprehensive income OCIand reclassified into earnings in the same line item associated with

the forecasted transaction and in the same period during which the hedged transaction affects

earnings The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative instrument if any is

recognized in earnings immediately

The following table summarizes the loss recognized in OCI and the loss reclassified from

accumulated OCT into income before income tax for the derivative instrument designated as cash

flow hedge during the fiscal year ended June 29 2013

Location of

Loss Loss Loss

Gross Loss Location of Loss Reclassified Ineffective Ineffective

Recognized Reclassified from from Portion Portion

in OCI Accumulated Accumulated Excluded from Excluded from

Effective OCI Effective OCI Effective Effectiveness Effectiveness

Portion Portion Portion Testing Testing

Interest rate

contract 41 Interest expense 212 Interest expense

The following table summarizes the loss recognized in OCT and the loss reclassified from accumulated

OCT into earnings for the derivative instrument designated as cash flow hedge during the fiscal year

ended June 30 2012

Location of

Loss Loss Loss

Gross Loss Location of Loss Reclassified Ineffective Ineffective

Recognized Reclassified from from Portion Portion

in OCI Accumulated Accumulated Excluded from Excluded from

Effective OCI Effective OCI Effective Effectiveness Effectiveness

Portion Portion Portion Testing Testing

Interest rate

contract 458 Interest expense 250 Interest expense

55



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Bariy Corporation and Subsidiaries

dollar amounts in thousands except per common share data

The estimated net amount of the loss in accumulated OCt at June 29 2013 expected to be

reclassified into income before income tax within the next twelve months is $156

Lease Commitments

The Company occupies certain distribution and office sales facilities under cancelable and

noncancelable operating lease arrangements summary of the noncancelable operating lease

commitments at June 29 2013 is as follows

2014 557

2015 201

2016

759

Substantially all of these operating lease agreements have no further contractual renewals and

require the Company to pay insurance taxes and maintenance expenses Rent expense under

cancelable and non-cancelable operating lease arrangements in fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and fiscal

2011 was $765 $1098 and $1028 respectively

Income Taxes

Income tax expense for fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 consisted of the following

2013 2012 2011

Current expense
Federal 6768 6538 2959

State 1161 1197 437

7929 7735 3396

Deferred expense 325 976 932

Total expense 8254 8711 4328

The difference between income taxes computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rates

of 35% 35% and 34% in fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 respectively and income tax

expense reported in the consolidated statements of income is

2013 2012 2011

Computed expected tax expense 7529 8141 4025

State income taxes expense net of

federal income tax 785 915 361

Revaluation of net deferred tax assets 338
Other net 60 58
Total expense 8254 8711 4328

The tax effects of temporary differences and loss carryforwards that give rise to significant portions

of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are presented below
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2013 2012

Deferred tax assets

Current assets 1190 895

Accrued expenses 1435 1366

Pension liability 5421 6806

hterest rate contract liability 106 175

Capital loss cariyforward ____________
508

Total deferred tax assets 8152 9750

Less valuation allowance ____________ 508
Deferred tax assets net 8152 9242

Deferred tax liabilities

Accrued pension costs 2505 2559

Acquisition intangible assets and expenses 650 270

Prepaid insurance 63 70

Property plant and equipment 479 110

Total deferred tax liabilities 3697 3009

Net deferred tax assets 4455 6233

During fiscal 2012 the Company concluded based on its forecast of future operations and

estimated federal state and local effective tax rates the likely rate at which net temporary

differences would reverse had changed Accordingly deferred tax assets and liabilities as of the

beginning of fiscal 2012 were revalued at higher tax rate resulting in deferred tax benefit of

$338 which was recorded during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012

The net temporary differences incurred to date will reverse in future periods as the Company

generates
taxable earnings The Company believes it is more likely than not that the results of

future operations will generate sufficient taxable earnings to realize the net deferred tax assets

recorded

During fiscal 2013 the capital loss carryforward related to the 2007 sale of Fargeot expired unused

consequently the capital loss carry
forward deferred tax asset and the related valuation reserve of

$508 were reversed

At the end of fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 there were no net operating loss

canyforwards available for U.S federal state and local income tax purposes

The Company did not record an accrual for tax related uncertainties or unrecognized tax positions

at the end of fiscal 2013 or the end of fiscal 2012 The Company does not expect change to the

reserve for uncertain tax positions within the next twelve months that would have material impact

on the consolidated financial statements The Company recorded no interest or penalties during or

at the end of fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 in either its consolidated statement of income

or consolidated balance sheet

The Company files consolidated U.S Federal income tax return and consolidated and separate

company income tax returns in various state and local jurisdictions Generally the Company is no

longer subject to income tax examinations by federal tax authorities through the tax year ended July

2011 and by state and local tax authorities for the tax years through June 28 2008
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10 Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses at June 29 2013 and June 30 2012 consisted of the following

2013 2012

Salaries and wages 3129 3537

Other taxes 68 147

Current pension liabilities 660 655

Other 1042 1362

4899 5701

11 Employee Retirement Plans

The Company maintains tax qualified pension plan the Associates Retirement Plan ARP
The Company intends to fund the minimum amounts required under the Employee Retirement

Income Security Act of 1974 ERISA The Company also sponsors tax nonqualified pension

plan the Supplemental Retirement Plan SRP for certain officers and other key employees as

designated by R.G Barry Corporations Board of Directors The SRP is unfunded noncontributory

and provides for the payment of monthly retirement benefits Benefits are based on formula

applied to the recipients final average monthly compensation reduced by certain percentage of

their social security benefits For certain participants the SRP provides an alternative benefit

formula for years worked past the normal retirement age assumed by the SRP Effective as of close

of business on March 31 2004 both the ARP and SRP were frozen

The funded status of the ARP and the SRP and the accrued retirement costs measured on June 29

2013 and June 30 2012 respectively were

Change in projected benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at the beginning of the

year

Interest cost

Actuarial gain loss

Benefits paid ___________ ___________ __________ ___________

Benefit obligation at the end of the year ___________ ___________ __________ ___________

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of

the year

Actual return on plan assets

Contributions

Expenses

Benefits paid ___________ ___________ __________ ___________

Fair value of plan assets at end of the year ___________ ___________ __________ ___________

Funded status at end of the year 171 3111 7242 7710

ARP
2013 2012

SRP

2013 2012

35721

1430

1674
2331

32778

1644

3675

2376

7710
306

115
659

33146 35721

7620
379

397

686

32610

1936

936

176

29238

2639

3286

177

7242 7710

659 686

659 6862331 2376

32975 32610
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Current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities 171 3111

171 3111

655
7055
7710

Amounts recognized in accumulated other

comprehensive loss-pretax for net actuarial

loss 11701 15034 2134 2350

Other changes in plan assets and benefit

obligations recognized in other

comprehensive loss-pretax

Net actuarial gain loss

Amortization of

Prior service cost

Net actuarial losses

Total recognized in comprehensive loss 3334 1847 216 299

Actuarial gains and losses on assets reflect the differences between expected and actual rates of

return on pension plan assets Actuarial gains and losses on pension obligations primarily reflect

the effect of changes in discount rate on the measure of pension liabilities at the end of each fiscal

year and demographic differences between actual and projected mortality and other factors The

actuarial loss reported for pension obligations in fiscal 2013 reflects primarily the decrease of 106

basis points in the discount rate from the end of fiscal 2012 through fiscal 2013 The estimated net

actuarial loss for the defined benefit plans that will be amortized from accumulated other

comprehensive loss into net periodic benefit cost during fiscal 2014 are $1375 and $93

respectively

At June 29 2013 expected benefit payments to plan participants in the ARP and the SRP for each

of the next five years and the five-year period thereafter in the aggregate are

ARP SRP

2014 2399 660

2015 2368 695

2016 2383 688

2017 2375 677

2018 2374 664

2019-2023 11616 3002

Net pension liability at end of year

660
6582
7242

ARP
2013 2012

SRP

2013 2012

1635 3139

1699 1292

116 397

13
100 85
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Weighted average assumptions

used to determine net costs for

boththeARPandtheSRF 2013 2012 2011

Discount rate 4.14% 5.20% 5.02%

Expected return on plan assets 6.00% 6.75% 7.90%

Components of Net Periodic

Benefit Cost

Interest cost 1736 2023 1974

Expected return on plan assets 1799 1926 2043
Net amortization 1799 1390 1261

Total pension expense 1736 1487 1192

Weighted average assumptions

used to determine benefit

obligations 2013 2012 2011

Discountrate 4.58% 4.14% 5.20%

The ARP is funded on periodic basis as required under ERISA/IRS guidelines The general

principles guiding investment of pension plan assets are those embodied under ERISA These

principles include discharging the Companys investment responsibilities for the exclusive benefit

of plan participants and in accordance with the prudent expert standards and other ERISA rules

and regulations Investment objectives for the Companys pension plan assets are to optimize the

long-term return on plan assets while maintaining an acceptable level of risk diversify assets

among asset classes and investment styles and maintain long-term focus The plan asset

allocation shown below is consistent with the Companys investment policy objectives and reflects

the ongoing transition of the asset portfolio from an equity-based investment portfolio to debt-

security investment portfolio This change over time is designed to better match assets and

anticipated cash outflows with the underlying future expected payment streams associated with the

Companys ARP obligation With the assistance of consulting firm the plan fiduciaries are

responsible for selecting investment managers setting asset allocation targets and monitoring asset

allocation and investment performance

The qualified plan assets invested as of the measurement date for fiscal 2013 and for fiscal 2012

were as follows

2013 2012

Cash and equivalents 2% 2%
Domestic equities 19% 18%

Domestic fixed income securities 64% 65%

Foreign equities 15% 15%

Total pension plan assets invested 100% 100%
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The table below highlights assets held in trust in the ARP and the fair value categories applicable

to the various investments held at June 29 2013

Fair Value Measurements at Reportin2 Date Usin2

Assets

Cash and

equivalents

Domestic equities

Domestic fixed

income securities

Foreign equities

Total pension plan

assets

Carrying

Amount

706

6096

21127

5046

32975

Quoted Prices

in Active

Markets for

Identical

Assets

Level

706

6096

21127

5046

32975

Significant

Other

Observable

Inputs

Level

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs

Level

The table below highlights assets held in trust in the ARP and the fair value categories applicable

to the various investments held at June 30 2012

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Usin2

Assets

Cash and

equivalents

Domestic equities

Domestic fixed

income securities

Foreign equities

Total pension plan

assets

Carrying

Amount

762

5833

21231

4784

32610

Quoted Prices

in Active

Markets for

Identical

Assets

Level

762

5833

21231

4784

32610

Significant

Other

Observable

Inputs

Level

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs

Level

The expected return on plan assets used in the pension computations for the qualified ARP is based

on managements best judgment of future anticipated performance of those invested assets based on

past long-term experience and judgment on how future long-term performance will occur

The Companys SRP is unfunded and payments as required are made when due from the

Companys general funds In fiscal 2014 the Company anticipates total payments and qualified

plan contributions of $1314 related to its SRP and ARP
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The discount rate was determined based on an analysis of interest rates for high-quality long-term

corporate debt at each measurement date In order to appropriately match the bond maturities with

expected future cash payments the Company utilizes differing bond portfolios to estimate the

discount rates for the defined benefit plans The weighted average discount rate used to determine

the defined benefit plans obligation as of the balance sheet date is the rate in effect at the

measurement date The same rate is also used to determine the defined benefit plans expense for

the following fiscal year

The Company sponsors 40 1k plan for all its eligible salaried and non-salaried employees

Effective January 2005 the Company adopted 3% non-contributory Safe Harbor 401 provision

for all eligible plan participants The Companys contributions in cash to the 401k plan were

$243 $269 and $267 for fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 respectively

12 Shareholders Equity

As of June 29 2013 there were approximately 106 employees of the Company and seven non-

employee directors of R.G Barry Corporation who were eligible to participate in the 2005 Plan

The 2005 Plan authorizes the issuance of 1000000 common shares plus

the number of common shares that were authorized to be the subject of awards under the

1997 Incentive Stock Plan the 1997 Plan and the 2002 Stock Incentive Plan the 2002

Plan but which had not yet been granted as of May 20 2005 and

any common shares underlying awards granted under the 1997 Plan and the 2002 Plan which

are forfeited after May 20 2005

At June 29 2013 the number of common shares available for future grants pursuant to the 2005

Plan was 313000

The selection of participants and the nature and size of awards granted under the 2005 Plan is

within the discretion of the Compensation Committee of R.G Barry Corporations Board of

Directors the Committee in the case of grants to employees of the Company or the full Board

of Directors in the case of grants to non-employee directors of R.G Barry Corporation The 2005

Plan provides for the following types of awards each as defined in the 2005 Plan

nonqualified stock options NQs and incentive stock options ISOs that qualify under

Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended

ci stock appreciation rights

ci restricted stock and restricted stock units RSU5 and

ci stock grants stock units and cash awards

Grants of restricted stock RSUs stock units and cash awards may as determined by the Committee

or the full Board of Directors as appropriate also be performance-based awards as defined in the

2005 Plan

If an award granted under the 2005 Plan is forfeited cancelled terminated relinquished exchanged

or otherwise settled without the issuance of common shares or the payment of cash equal to the

difference between the fair market value of the award and any exercise price the common shares

associated with that award will be available for future grants The maximum number of common

shares with respect to which awards may be issued under the 2005 Plan to any individual during

any calendar year is 200000 The common shares issued pursuant to the 2005 Plan may consist of

authorized and unissued common shares or treasury shares
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Prior to the 2005 Plan the Company had various equity-based compensation plans under which

ISOs and NQs had been granted some of which remain outstanding All outstanding ISOs and

NQs are currently exercisable for periods of up to ten years from the date of grant at exercise prices

of not less than the fair market value of the underlying common shares at the grant date

The Company recorded as part of selling general and administrative expenses $1694 and $1555

of stock-based compensation expense for fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012 respectively This amount

includes expense from all ISOs NQs and RSUs granted whether to be settled with the issuance of

common shares or by equivalent cash payment and the value of common shares issued for services

rendered by members of the Board of Directors of R.G Barry Corporation

The total unrecognized compensation cost of RSUs granted but not yet vested as of June 29 2013

was approximately $906 The Company expects to recognize the total remaining compensation

cost with respect to these RSUs over the weighted-average period of approximately two years

Total unrecognized compensation cost of stock options granted but not yet vested as of June 29

2013 was $7 This amount is expected to be recognized over the remaining pro-rata vesting period

of one year associated with these stock option grants The following assumptions were used to

value these stock options

Dividend yield 2.6%

Expected volatility
48.4%

Risk-free interest rate 1.4%

Expected term years

The risk-free interest rate was based on the United States Treasury daily yield curve rates for the

expected term of the stock options The expected volatility was based on the historical volatility of

the common shares of R.G Barry Corporation
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Plan activity for grants under the 2005 Plan and the other equity-based compensation plans under

which ISOs and NQs have been granted was as follows

Number of Number of Weighted-

common shares common shares average exercise

subject to ISOs subject to NQs price

Outstanding at July 2010 36000 105500 6.11

Granted 12300 11.36

Exercised 13300 5000 5.85

Expired/Cancelled

Outstanding at July 2011 22700 112800 6.63

Granted

Exercised 15200 94200 6.43

Expired/Cancelled 1600 12.55

Outstanding at June 30 2012 7500 17000 7.12

Granted

Exercised 7500 3.27

Expired/Cancelled

Outstanding at June 29 2013 17000 8.82

Options exercisable at June 29 2013 13400

Options outstanding Options exercisable

Weighted-

average Weighted- Weighted-

Range of Number remaining average Number average

exercise outstanding at contractual exercise exercisable at exercise

prices June 29 2013 life years price June 29 2013 price

2.51 5.00 6300 0.2 4.78 6300 4.78

5.01 10.00

10.0115.00 10700 7.7 11.18 7100 11.18

17000 13400

The intrinsic values of the stock options exercisable and outstanding at the end of fiscal 2013 were

$108 and $126 respectively The intrinsic value of stock options exercised during fiscal 2013 was

$75

At the end of fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 the stock options outstanding under these

equity-based compensation plans were held by and individuals respectively and had

expiration dates ranging from 2013 to 2021
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Consistent with its non-employee directors compensation policy the Company also awarded an

aggregate of 18711 common shares i.e unrestricted stock with immediate vesting to the non-

employee directors of R.G Barry Corporation during the second quarter of fiscal 2013 The

aggregate fair value of this award of common shares was $257 based on the market price of the

Companys common shares at the date of grant and was included as part of the total stock-based

compensation expense cited above

The intrinsic value of RSUs that vested during fiscal 2013 was $1771

During fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012 the Company granted performance-based RSUs to certain

members of management Each performance-based RSU is equivalent to one common share The

number of RSUs eligible for settlement to participants is ultimately based on the level of diluted

earnings per share achieved by the Company at certain established minimum target and

maximum levels for the fiscal year in which such performance-based RSUs are granted If the

minimum level of diluted earnings per share is not achieved for the fiscal year of grant all of the

performance-based RSUs underlying the award will be forfeited If diluted earnings per share

exceed the minimumlevel the number of RSUs underlying the award eligible for settlement will

be determined when the annual financial results are finalized by the Company and one-third of

those RSUs will be settled

The performance-based RSUs described in the preceding paragraph will be settled if eligible

through an issuance of common shares for 50% of the performance-based RSUs and through cash

payment for the other 50% of the performance-based RSUs valued at the fair value of common

share at the time of settlement

The remaining performance-based RSUs eligible for settlement will vest to the participants based

on continued service rendered to the Company over the following two-fiscal-year periods with

annual pro rata vesting based on employment during the relevant fiscal year and settlement

occurring at the end of each fiscal year Except in instances of death or retirement where pro rata

vesting would be applied participants must be employed by the Company at the time of settlement

in order to be vested in any portion of the award otherwise to be settled

Based on the diluted earnings per share achieved by the Company for fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012

the number of total performance-based RSUs eligible for settlement was computed at 63000 and

105200 respectively of which 50% was accounted for as an equity award and 50% was

accounted for as cash settlement award The fair value of the equity awards for fiscal 2013 and

fiscal 2012 was determined based on the weighted average closing market price of common

share at the date of grant of $14.74 and $10.51 respectively Similarly the fair value of the cash

settlement awards was initially based on the market price of common share at the date of grant

but is subject to periodic revaluation as changes occur in the market price of common share over

the vesting period of the awards

In addition consistent with its employee compensation policy the Company granted an aggregate

of 19300 time-based RSUs which vest in equal annual installments over three years to certain

members of management

At the end of fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 RSUs outstanding under the 2005 Plan were

held by 31 27 and 26 employees respectively and had vesting dates ranging from 2014 to 2018

These RSU vesting dates were subject to partial acceleration on an annual basis if certain Company
financial performance objectives were achieved for the applicable fiscal year
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The following is summary of the status of the Companys time-based RSUs as of June 29 2013
June 30 2012 and July 2011 and activity during the fiscal years then ended

2013 2012 2011

Weighted Weighted Weighted

average average average

grant- grant- grant-

date fair date fair date fair

RSUs value RSUs value RSUs value

Unvested at

beginning of the

year 324900 8.43 319900 8.24 314000 7.49

Granted 19400 14.74 24100 10.51 124500 9.92

Vested 102200 8.38 4200 6.46 94600 8.05

Forfeited/Cancelled 17100 8.47 14900 8.40 24000 7.80

Unvested at the end

of the year 225000 $10.59 324900 8.43 319900 8.24

Activity for fiscal 2013 with respect to performance-based RSUs with future settlement at vesting

in common shares was as follows

Number of

common shares Grant Date

underlyin2 RSUs Fair Value

Unvested at June 30 2012 51900 10.51

Granted based on diluted earnings per

share for the Company for fiscal 2013 31800 14.74

Vested 17300 10.51

Forfeited/Cancelled 1400 12.09

UnvestedatJune292013 65.000 12.53

Fiscal 2013 grants to various members of management were accounted for as cash settlement

awards based on expected diluted earnings per share by the Company for fiscal 2013 for which

the fair value of the awards is subject to initial valuation and subsequent periodic revaluation at the

end of each reporting period based on the corresponding market price of common share of the

Company
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13 Net Earnings per Common Share

The following table presents reconciliation of the denominator used for each period in computing

basic and diluted earnings per common share with common shares in the table represented in

thousands

2013 2012 2011

Numerator

Net earnings 13257 14549 7510

Denominator in thousands

Weighted-average common shares

outstanding 11352 11207 11097

Effect of potentially dilutive securities

employee stock options and RSUs 178 207 130

Weighted-average common shares

outstanding assuming dilution 11530 11414 11227

Basic net earnings per common share 1.17 1.30 0.68

Diluted net earnings per common share 1.15 1.27 0.67

The Company excludes stock options to purchase common shares from the calculation of diluted

earnings per common share when they are anti-dilutive measured using the average market price of

the underlying common shares during that fiscal year Stock options excluded from the

computation of diluted net earnings per common share for fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011

were 3000 and 5000 respectively

14 Preferred Share Purchase Rights

On May 2009 the Board of Directors of R.G Barry Corporation declared dividend distribution

of one Preferred Share Purchase Right Right for each common share then outstanding to

shareholders of record on May 15 2009 Under certain conditions each Right may be exercised to

purchase from R.G Barry Corporation unit consisting of one one-hundredth of share Unit
of Series II Junior Participating Class Preferred Shares par value $1 per share at an initial

exercise price of $25 per Unit subject to adjustment The Rights initially will be attached to R.G

Barry Corporations common shares The Rights will separate from the common shares and

Distribution Date will occur upon the earlier of 10 business days after public announcement

that person or group of affiliated or associated persons has acquired or obtained the right to

acquire beneficial ownership of 15% or more of R.G Barry Corporations outstanding common

shares Share Acquisition Date other than as result of repurchases of common shares by R.G

Barry Corporation or certain inadvertent actions by institutional or certain other shareholders or

10 business days or such later date as the Board of Directors of R.G Barry Corporation shall

determine after the commencement of tender offer or exchange offer that would result in

person or group beneficially owning 15% or more of R.G Barry Corporations outstanding

common shares The Rights are not exercisable until the Distribution Date

In the event that any person becomes the beneficial owner of 15% or more of the then outstanding

common shares of R.G Barry Corporation each holder of Right will thereafter be entitled to

receive upon exercise common shares of R.G Barry Corporation or in certain circumstances

cash property or other securities of R.G Barry Corporation having market value equal to two

times the exercise price of the Right However following the occurrence of the event described in
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the preceding sentence all Rights that are beneficially owned by any Acquiring Person will be null

and void In the event that at any time following the Share Acquisition Date R.G Barry

Corporation is acquired in merger or other business combination transaction in which R.G Barry

Corporation is not the surviving corporation or 50% or more of the Companys consolidated assets

cash flow or earning power is sold or transferred the holder of Right except Rights which have

been previously voided as described above will be entitled to receive upon exercise of the Right

the number of shares of common stock of the acquiring company which at the time of such

transaction will have market value equal to two times the exercise price of the Right

The Rights which do not have any voting or dividend rights expire on May 2014 and may be

redeemed by R.G Barry Corporation at price of $0.01 per Right at any time until 10 business

days following the Share Acquisition Date The Board of Directors may also exchange the Rights

at ratio of one common share or one one-hundredth of Preferred Share per Right

Each Class Preferred Share entitles the holder thereof to one-tenth of one vote while Class

Preferred Shares should they become authorized for issuance by action of R.G Barry

Corporations Board of Directors entitle the holders thereof to ten votes The preferred shares are

entitled to preference in liquidation None of the preferred shares have been issued

15 Acquisitions

Acquisition of assets of Moseylife Company Limited Mosey

On March 29 2013 the Company purchased selected assets including accounts receivable finished

goods inventory trade names and various other assets and paid $1236 in cash in its acquisition of

the business assets of Mosey Mosey develops and markets handbags that feature more fashion

elements and higher retail prices and are targeted toward younger demographic than those sold by

Baggallini Mosey is managed and reported within the Companys Baggallini business unit as part

of the Accessories segment The product lines customer bases and core values of the Company

and this acquired business have numerous synergies As result this acquisition is expected to be

an integral part of the Companys long-range vision and strategic growth plans for its Accessories

segment The goodwill of $112 arising from this acquisition consists of the value of synergies and

economies of scale expected from combining the operations of the Company and Mosey All of the

goodwill was assigned to the Companys Accessories segment and will be deductible for income

tax purposes
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The following table summarizes the consideration paid for certain assets of Mosey and the amounts

of the assets acquired at the acquisition date

At March 29 2013

Fair value of total consideration transferred 1236

Acquisition-related cost included in selling general and administrative

expenses 72

Recognized amounts of assets acquired

Accounts receivable 320

Inventory 656

Fixed assets primarily computer equipment 10

Identifiable intangible assets 138

Total identifiable assets acquired 1124

Goodwill 112

1236

Moseys net sales and net earnings were not significant in respect of the Companys consolidated

statement of income for fiscal 2013 Any pro forma net sales and net earnings of the combined

entity had the acquisition date been July 2012 or July 2011 were likewise not significant to

any combined view of pro forma Company consolidated statements of income for fiscal 2013 and

fiscal 2012 respectively

16 Related-party Transactions

Under an existing agreement the Company is obligated for up to two years after the death of the

chairman of the Company to purchase if the estate elects to sell up to $4000 of the Companys

common shares owned by the chairman at the time of his death at their fair market value For

period of 24 months following the chairmans death the Company has right of first refusal to

purchase any common shares owned by the chairman at the time of his death if his estate elects to

sell such common shares and has the right to purchase such common shares on the same terms and

conditions as the estate proposes to sell such common shares to third party To fund its potential

obligation to purchase such common shares the Company maintains two insurance policies on the

life of the chairman The cumulative cash surrender value of the policies approximates $2964

which is included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

17 Segment Reporting

The Company primarily markets footwear and accessories products sold predominantly in North

America and has two reportable segments which include Footwear that encompasses primarily

slippers sandals hybrid and fashion footwear and Accessories with products including foot and

shoe care products handbags tote bags and other travel accessories The accounting policies of the

reportable segments are the same except that the disaggregated information has been prepared

using certain management reports which by their very nature require estimates

The two reportable segments are comprised of three individual operating Business Units BUs
footwear Foot Petals foot and shoe care products and Baggallini handbags tote bags

and travel products
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Barry Corporation and Subsidiaries

dollar amounts in thousands except per common share data

Each Business Unit is led by Business Unit President with the President reporting to the Chief

Executive Officer CEO of R.G Barry Corporation Each Business Unit President has financial

performance responsibility for the operating unit

While many selling general and administrative SGA expenses are directly charged to each

operating unit certain shared services expenses are incurred and allocated to the respective

operating units based on estimated usage of such corporate support Operating profit as measured

for each segment includes sales cost of sales and direct and allocated SGA expenses This segment

measure of operating profit or loss as defined is the primary indicator of financial performance

used by management

Other corporate expenses incurred are deemed to be applicable to the Company as whole and are

not allocated to any specific business segment These unallocated expenses primarily include areas

such as the Companys corporate and governance functions including the CEO the Chief Financial

Officer and the Board of Directors as well as such expense areas as annual accrued incentive

bonus incentive stock compensation pension professional fees and similar corporate expenses

Segment operating profit as reported below is based on the same definition of operating profit as

described above

Total segment assets for fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 have been revised from prior years disclosures

to conform to the fiscal 2013 presentation of cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments

as corporate unallocated assets

Net sales

Gross profit

Depreciation and

amortization

Operating profit

Net sales

Gross profit

Depreciation and

amortization

Operating profit

Net sales

Gross profit

Depreciation and

amortization

Operating profit

Unallocated

Corporate

147013

63944

644 2807

10299 20980

50694 130253

Unallocated Total

Corporate

155938

67169

674 3045

10970 23373

54060 128266

Unallocated Total

Corporate

118844 10724 129568

41776 6387 48163

580 528 783 1891

16909 2987 8216 11680

28113 50737 37129 115979

2013 Footwear

108334

43006

237

23736

26390

TotalAccessories

38679

20938

1926

7543

53169Total assets

2012 Footwear Accessories

123336

48901

486

28247

24740

32602

18268

1885

6096

49466Total assets

2011 Footwear Accessories

Total assets

70



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Barry Corporation and Subsidiaries

dollar amounts in thousands except per common share data

Net sales as reported in the consolidated statements of income relate primarily to markets in the

United States of America At June 29 2013 and June 30 2012 substantially all of the Companys

long-lived assets were located in the United States of America

For fiscal 2013 fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 one customer and its affiliates accounted for

approximately 26% 29% and 32% respectively of the Companys consolidated net sales This

customer and its affiliates are primarily in the Footwear segment

18 Contingent Liabilities

The Company is from time to time involved in claims and litigation considered normal in the

course of its business While it is not feasible to predict the ultimate outcome in the opinion of

management the resolution of pending legal proceedings is not expected to have material effect

on the Companys financial position results of operations or cash flows

19 Accounts Receivable Reserves

Balance at

Beginning Current Charges Other Balance at

Description of Year to Expenses Adjustments Deductions End of Year

Allowance for

doubtful accounts

Period ended

6/29/2013 57 15 46

6/30/2012 229 234 406 57

7/02/2011 228 28 27 229

Returns

Allowance

Period ended

6/29/2013 587 2223 2192 618

6/30/2012 1088 4153 4654 587

7/02/2011 1431 3711 4054 1088

Promotions

Allowance

Period ended

6/29/2013 1142 10360 181 9419 1902

6/30/2012 2205 10611 851 10823 1142

7/02/2011 1787 13828 935 12475 2205

The amounts under the Other Adjustments column in the table above reflect the difference

between estimates made at the end of the prior fiscal year and actual claims processed during the

applicable fiscal year
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Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited

in thousands except per common share data

Fiscal 2013 First Second Third Fourth

Net sales 47233 48505 25803 25472

Gross profit 20917 20554 11852 10621

Net earnings 6134 5301 1541 281

Basic net earnings per common share 0.54 0.47 0.14 0.02

Diluted net earnings per common share 0.54 0.46 0.13 0.02

Weighted-average common shares

outstanding

Basic 11282 11372 11377 11377

Diluted 11454 11564 11532 11522

Fiscal 2012 First Second Third Fourth

Net sales 50230 55599 25114 24995

Gross profit 22253 22997 11193 10725

Net earnings 6890 6351 834 474

Basic net earnings per common share 0.62 0.57 0.07 0.04

Diluted net earnings per common share 0.61 0.56 0.07 0.04

Weighted-average common shares

outstanding

Basic 11137 11179 11245 11268

Diluted 11305 11364 11444 11471

The above information is summary of unaudited quarterly results of operations of the Company for

fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012 The sum of the quarterly net earnings per common share data in the table

above may not equal the results for the applicable fiscal year due to rounding and where applicable the

impact of dilutive securities on the annual versus the quarterly net earnings per common share

calculations

The Company acquired business assets and operations of Foot Petals LLC in January 2011 and business

assets and operations of Baggallini Inc in March 2011 Results for each of the acquired businesses were

included in the results above from the dates of the respective acquisition

Item Chan2es in and Disa2reements With Accountants on Accountin2 and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures defined in Rules 3a- 15e and Sd- 15e under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act that are designed to provide

reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under

the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in

the SECs rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our

management including our principal executive officer and our principal financial officer as appropriate

to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure
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Management with the participation of our principal executive officer and our principal
financial officer

performed an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the

fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K the fiscal year ended June 29 2013 Based on

that evaluation our principal executive officer and our principal financial officer have concluded that

such disclosure controls and procedures were effective at reasonable assurance level as of the end of the

fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred in the last fiscal

quarter the fiscal quarter ended June 29 2013 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to

materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

Annual Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our financial reporting and the

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States Internal control over financial reporting includes those policies

and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and

fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of R.G Barry Corporation and our

consolidated subsidiaries ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States and that receipts and expenditures of R.G Barry Corporation and our consolidated

subsidiaries are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of R.G

Barry Corporation and our consolidated subsidiaries where appropriate and iii provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the

assets of R.G Barry Corporation and our consolidated subsidiaries that could have material effect on the

consolidated financial statements

Management with the participation of our principal executive officer and our principal financial officer

evaluated the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of June 29 2013 the end of

our fiscal year Management based its assessment on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated

Framework 1992 issued by the Conmiittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

Managements assessment included evaluation of such elements as the design and operating effectiveness

of key financial reporting controls process documentation accounting policies and our overall control

environment This assessment is supported by testing and monitoring performed under the direction of

management

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the

risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate Accordingly even an effective system of

internal control over financial reporting will provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial

statement preparation

Based on the assessment of our internal control over financial reporting management has concluded that

our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of June 29 2013 The results of

managements assessment were reviewed with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of R.G

Barry Corporation

Additionally our independent registered public accounting firm KPMG LLP independently assessed the

effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting and issued the accompanying Report of

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

R.G Barry Corporation

We have audited R.G Barry Corporations internal control over financial reporting as of June 29 2013
based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework 1992 issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO R.G Barry Corporations

management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its

assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying
Annual Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material

respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting

assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audit also included performing such

other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides

reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal

control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance

of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the

assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations

of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention

or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have

material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the

risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion R.G Barry Corporation maintained in all material respects effective internal control over

financial reporting as of June 29 2013 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated

Framework 1992 issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States the consolidated balance sheets of R.G Barry Corporation and subsidiaries as of

June 29 2013 and June 30 2012 and the related consolidated statements of income comprehensive

income shareholders equity and cash flows for the fiscal years ended June 29 2013 June 30 2012 and

July 2011 and our report dated September 11 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion on those

consolidated financial statements

Is KPMG LLP

Columbus Ohio

September 112013
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Item 9B Other Information

There is no information to report
under this Item 9B

PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Directors Executive Officers and Persons Nominated or Chosen to Become Directors or Executive

Officers

The information required by Item 401 of SEC Regulation S-K concerning the directors of R.G Barry

Corporation and the Board of Directors nominees for election as directors of R.G Barry Corporation at

the 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of R.G Barry Corporation to be held on October 30 2013 the

2013 Annual Meeting is incorporated herein by reference from the disclosure to be included under the

caption PROPOSAL ELECTION OF DIRECTORS Item on the Proxy in the definitive Proxy

Statement relating to the 2013 Annual Meeting the Definitive 2013 Proxy Statement which will be

filed pursuant to SEC Regulation 14A no later than 120 days after June 29 2013

The information required by Item 401 of SEC Regulation S-K concerning the executive officers of R.G

Barry Corporation is included in the portion
of Part of this 2013 Form 10-K entitled Supplemental

Item Executive Officers of the Registrant and incorporated herein by reference

Compliance with Section 16a of the Exchange Act

The information required by Item 405 of SEC Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference from

the disclosure to be included under the caption SHARE OWNERSHIP Section 16a Beneficial

Ownership Reporting Compliance in the Definitive 2013 Proxy Statement of R.G Barry Corporation

Procedures by which Shareholders may Recommend Nominees to the Board of Directors of R.G

Barry Corporation

Information concerning the procedures by which shareholders of R.G Barry Corporation may

recommend nominees to the Board of Directors of R.G Barry Corporation is incorporated herein by

reference from the disclosure to be included under the captions PROPOSAL ELECTION OF

DIRECTORS Item on the Proxy Committees of the Board Nominating and Governance

Committee and PROPOSAL 1- ELECTION OF DIRECTORS Item on the Proxy Nominating

Procedures in the 2013 Definitive Proxy Statement of R.G Barry Corporation These procedures have

not materially changed from those described in the definitive Proxy Statement of R.G Barry Corporation

for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

Audit Committee Matters

The information required by Items 407d4 and 407d5 of SEC Regulation S-K is incorporated herein

by reference from the disclosure to be included under the caption PROPOSAL ELECTION OF

DIRECTORS Item on the Proxy Committees of the Board Audit Committee in the Definitive

2013 Proxy Statement of R.G Barry Corporation

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics Committee Charters Board Mission Corporate

Governance Guidelines

The Board of Directors of R.G Barry Corporation has adopted Code of Business Conduct Ethics

covering the directors officers and employees of R.G Barry Corporation and its subsidiaries including

the President and Chief Executive Officer the principal
executive officer and the Senior Vice President

Finance and Chief Financial Officer the principal financial officer and principal accounting officer
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R.G Barry Corporation will disclose the following events if they occur in current report on Form 8-K

to be filed with the SEC within the required four business days following their occurrence the date

and nature of any amendment to provision of the Code of Business Conduct Ethics of R.G Barry

Corporation that applies to the principal executive officer principal financial officer principal

accounting officer or controller or persons performing similar functions ii relates to any element of the

code of ethics definition enumerated in Item 406b of SEC Regulation S-K and iiiis not technical

administrative or other non-substantive amendment and description of any waiver including the

nature of the waiver the name of the person to whom the waiver was granted and the date of the waiver

including an implicit waiver from provision of the Code of Business Conduct Ethics granted to the

principal executive officer principal financial officer principal accounting officer or controller or

persons performing similar functions that relates to one or more of the items set forth in Item 406b of

SEC Regulation S-K In addition R.G Barry Corporation will disclose any waivers of the Code of

Business Conduct Ethics granted to director or an executive officer of R.G Barry Corporation if they

occur in current report on Form 8-K within four business days following their occurrence

The Board of Directors of R.G Barry Corporation has adopted charters for each of the Audit Committee

the Compensation Committee and the Nominating and Governance Committee as well as the Board

Charter Corporate Governance Guidelines

The text of each of the Code of Business Conduct Ethics the Audit Committee charter the

Compensation Committee charter the Nominating and Governance Committee charter and the Board

Charter Corporate Governance Guidelines is posted on the Investors Governance page of R.G

Barry Corporations web site located at www.rgbany.com Interested persons may also obtain copy of

the Code of Business Conduct Ethics the Audit Committee charter the Compensation Committee

charter the Nominating and Governance Committee charter and the Board Charter Corporate

Governance Guidelines without charge by writing to R.G Barry Corporation at its principal executive

offices located at 13405 Yarmouth Road N.W Pickerington Ohio 43147 Attention JosØ Ibarra

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 402 of SEC Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference from

the disclosure to be included under the captions PROPOSAL ELECTION OF DIRECTORS Item

on the ProxyBoard Role in Risk OversightRisk Assessment in Compensation Programs

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS and

COMPENSATION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS in the Definitive 2013 Proxy Statement of R.G

Barry Corporation

The information required by Item 407e of SEC Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference

from the disclosure to be included under the caption PROPOSAL ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Item on the Proxy Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation in the Definitive

2013 Proxy Statement of R.G Barry Corporation

The information required by Item 407e of SEC Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference

from the disclosure to be included under the caption COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT in

the Definitive 2013 Proxy Statement of R.G Barry Corporation

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Manatement and Related

Stockholder Matters

Ownership of Common Shares of R.G Barry Corporation

The information required by Item 403 of SEC Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference from

the disclosure to be included in the Definitive 2013 Proxy Statement of R.G Bany Corporation under the

caption SHARE OWNERSHIP
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The information required by Item 201d of SEC Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference from

the disclosure to be included in the Definitive 2013 Proxy Statement of R.G Barry Corporation under the

caption EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN iNFORMATION

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions

The information required by Item 404 of SEC Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference from

the disclosure to be included under the caption TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS in the

Definitive 2013 Proxy Statement of R.G Barry Corporation

Director Independence

The information required by Item 407a of SEC Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference from

the disclosure to be included under the caption PROPOSAL ELECTION OF DIRECTORS Item

on the Proxy Qualifications and Independence of Board Members and Nominees in the Definitive

2013 Proxy Statement of R.G Barry Corporation

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item 14 is incorporated herein by reference from the disclosure to be

included in the Definitive 2013 Proxy Statement of R.G Barry Corporation under the captions AUDIT
COMMITTEE MATTERS Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures and AUDIT COMMITTEE
MATTERS Fees of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

The consolidated financial statements and report thereon listed below are included in

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this 2013 Form 10-K at the pages
indicated

Page

Report of KPMG LLP Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. 37

Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 29 2013 and June 30 2012 38

Consolidated Statements of Income for the fiscal years ended June 29 2013

June 30 2012 and July 2011 39

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the fiscal years

ended June 29 2013 June 30 2012 and July 2011 40

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity for the fiscal years ended

June292013June3O2Ol2andJuly22011 41

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended June 29

2013 June 30 2012 and July 22011
42

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 43-7

a2 Financial statement schedules

All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the SEC are omitted

because of the absence of the conditions under which they are required or because the required
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information is presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements or notes thereto included in Item

Financial Statements and Supplement Data of this 2013 Form 10-K

a3 and Exhibits

The exhibits listed on the Index to Exhibits beginning on page E-1 of this 2013 Form 10-K are filed

furnished or submitted with this 2013 Form 10-K or incorporated herein by reference as noted in the

Index to Exhibits The Index to Exhibits specifically identifies each management contract or

compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this 2013 Form 10-K or

incorporated herein by reference

Financial Statement Schedules

None
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the

Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly

authorized

R.G BARRY CORPORATION

Date September 11 2013 By Is JosØ Ibarra

JosØ Ibarra

Senior Vice President-Finance and Chief Financial

Officer
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed

below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated

Name Capacity Date

Is Greg Tunney President and Chief Executive Officer September 11 2013

Greg Tunney Principal Executive Officer and

Director

/s/ JosØ Ibarra Senior Vice President Finance and September 11 2013

JosØ Ibarra Chief Financial Officer Principal

Financial Officer and Principal

Accounting Officer

Is Gordon Zacks Non-Executive Chairman of the Board September 11 2013

Gordon Zacks and Director

Is Nicholas DiPaolo Director September 11 2013

Nicholas DiPaolo

Is David Lauer Director September 11 2013

David Lauer

/s/ David Nichols Director September 11 2013

David Nichols

/s/ Janice Page Director September 11 2013

Janice Page

/s/ Thomas Von Lehman Director September 11 2013

Thomas Von Lehman

Is Harvey Weinberg Director September 11 2013

Harvey Weinberg

The undersigned by signing his name hereto does hereby sign this Annual Report on Form 10-K on

behalf of each of the above-identified directors of the Registrant pursuant to Powers of Attorney

executed by the above-identified directors of the Registrant which Powers of Attorney are filed with

this Annual Report on Form 10-K as Exhibit 24.1

By Is JosØ Ibarra
Date September 11 2013

JosØ Ibarra

Attorney-in-Fact
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R.G BARRY CORPORATION
ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 29 2013

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit No Description

2.1 Asset Purchase Agreement entered into

as of January 27 2011 by and among

R.G Barry International Inc Foot

Petals LLC and Tina Aldatz

Asset Purchase Agreement entered into

March 15 2011 by and among Bany

Holding Co Baggallini Inc Dixie

Powers as trustee and individually and

Elizabeth Ann Simmons

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of R.G Barry

Corporation as filed with Ohio

Secretary of State on March 26 1984

3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Articles of

Incorporation of R.G Barry Corporation

as filed with Ohio Secretary of State on

June 1987

Certificate of Amendment to the Articles

of Incorporation of R.G Barry

Corporation Authorizing the Series

Junior Participating Class Preferred

Shares as filed with the Ohio Secretary

of State on March 1988

3.4 Certificate of Amendment to the Articles

of R.G Barry Corporation as filed with

the Ohio Secretary of State on May

1988

3.5 Certificate of Amendment to the Articles

of Incorporation of R.G Barry

Corporation as filed with the Ohio

Secretary of State on May 22 1995

Location

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

2.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of

R.G Barry Corporation Registrant dated

and filed January 28 2011 SEC File No

001-08769

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

2.1 to Registrants Current Report on Form

8-K dated and filed March 18 2011 SEC
File No 00 1-08769

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3ai to Registrants Annual Report

on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

December 31 1988 SEC File No 0-12667

Registrants December 31 1988 Form 10-

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

3ai to Registrants December 31 1988

Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

3ai to Registrants December 31 1988

Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3ai to Registrants December 31

1988 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3b to Registrants Annual Report

on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

December 30 1995 SEC File No 001-

08769 Registrants December 30 1995

Form 10-K

2.2

3.3

E-



3.6 Certificate of Amendment to the Articles of

Incorporation of R.G Barry Corporation as

filed with the Ohio Secretary of State on

September 1995

3.7 Certificate of Amendment by Shareholders

to the Articles of Incorporation of R.G

Barry Corporation as filed with the Ohio

Secretary of State on May 30 1997

Certificate of Amendment by Directors of

R.G Barry Corporation to the Articles of

Incorporation of R.G Barry Corporation

Authorizing Series Junior Participating

Class Preferred Shares as filed with the

Ohio Secretary of State on March 10 1998

Certificate of Amendment by Directors to

the Articles of Incorporation of R.G Barry

Corporation Authorizing the Series II Junior

Participating Class Preferred Shares as
filed with the Ohio Secretary of State on

May 12009

3.10 Certificate of Amendment by Shareholders

to the Articles of Incorporation of R.G

Barry Corporation as filed with the Ohio

Secretary of State on November 2010

Articles of Incorporation of R.G Barry

Corporation reflecting all amendments

filed with the Ohio Secretary of State

purposes of SEC reporting compliance only

not filed with the Ohio Secretary of State

3.12 Code of Regulations of R.G Barry

Corporation reflecting all amendments

Rights Agreement dated as of May 2009

between R.G Barry Corporation and The

Bank of New York Mellon as Rights

Agent including the Form of Rights

Certificate and the Summary of Rights to

Purchase Preferred Shares

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3c to Registrants December 30

1995 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 4h6 to Registrants Registration

Statement on Form S-8 filed June 1997

Registration No 333-2867

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

3a7 to Registrants Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January

1998 SEC File No 001-08769

Registrants January 1998 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

3.1 to Registrants Current Report on Form

8-K dated and filed May 2009 SEC File

No 00 1-08769 Registrants May 2009

Form 8-K

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

3.1 to Registrants Current Report on Form

8-K dated and filed November 2010 SEC
File No 00 1-08769

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

3.2 to Registrants Quarterly Report on Form

lO-Q for the quarterly period ended October

2010 SEC File No 00 1-08769

Registrants October 2010 Form l0-Q

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3.2 to Registrants Quarterly Report

on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended

July 2004 SEC File No 00 1-08769

Registrants July 2004 Form 10-Q

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

4.1 to Registrants May 2009 Form 8-K

3.8

3.9

3.11

4.1

E-2



First Amendment to the Rights Agreement

made as of August 15 2011 by and among

R.G Barry Corporation The Bank of New
York Mellon Corporation as the former

rights agent and Broadridge Corporate

Issuer Solutions Inc as the successor

rights agent relating to the Rights

Agreement dated as of May 2009

10.1 R.G Bany Corporation Supplemental

Retirement Plan effective as of

January 1997

10.2 Amendment No to the R.G Barry

Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan

Effective January 1997 effective as of

May 12 1998 executed May 15 1998

10.3 Amendment No to the R.G Barry

Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan

Effective January 1997 effective as of

January 2000 executed March 28 2000

Amendment No to the R.G Barry

Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan

Effective January 1997 effective as of

March 31 2004 executed February 20

2004

10.5 R.G Barry Corporation Restoration Plan

As Amended and Restated Effective as of

January 1997

10.6 Amendment No to the R.G Barry

Corporation Restoration Plan executed

February 20 2001 effective as of January

12001

10.7 Amendment No to the R.G Barry

Corporation Restoration Plan executed

February 20 2004 effective as of March

31 2004

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

4.1 to Registrants Current Report on Form

8-K dated and filed August 19 2011 SEC
File No 00 1-08769

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.2 to Registrants Annual Report on Form

10-K for the fiscal year ended January

2000 SEC File No 00 1-08769

Registrants January 2000 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.3 to Registrants January 2000

Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.4 to Registrants January 2000 Form

10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.8 to Registrants Annual Report on Form

10-K for the fiscal year ended January

2004 SEC File No 00 1-08769

Registrants January 2004 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.12 to Registrants Annual Report on Form

10-K for the fiscal year ended June 28 2008

SEC File No 00 1-08769 Registrants

June 28 2008 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.13 to Registrants June 28 2008 Form 10-

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.14 to Registrants June 28 2008 Form

10-K

4.2

10.4

Management contract or compensatory

plan or arrangement

E-3



10.8 Employment Agreement effective July Incorporated herein by reference to

2001 between R.G Bany Corporation and Exhibit 10.5 to Registrants Annual

Gordon Zacks
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year

ended December 29 2001 SEC File No
00 1-08769 Registrants December 29
2001 Form 10-K

10.9 Confidential Separation Agreement dated Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

March 10 2004 between R.G Barry 10.1 to Registrants Current Report on Form

Corporation and Gordon Zacks 8-K dated and filed March 11 2004 SEC
File No 00 1-08769 Registrants March

112004 Form 8-K

10.10 Agreement dated September 27 1989 Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

between R.G Barry Corporation and 28.1 to Registrants Current Report on Form

Gordon Zacks 8-K dated October 11 1989 and filed

October 12 1989 SEC File No 0-12667

10.11 Amendment No dated as of October 12 Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

1994 to the Agreement between Registrant to Amendment No 14 to Schedule 13D

and Gordon Zacks dated September 27 dated January 27 1995 filed by Gordon

1989 Zacks on February 13 1995

10.12 Amended Split-Dollar Insurance Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

Agreement dated March 23 1995 between 10h to Registrants December 30 1995

Registrant and Gordon Zacks Form 10-K

10.13 R.G Barry Corporation Employee Stock Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

Purchase Plan 10.1 to Registrants Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended

June 28 2003 SEC File No 00 1-08769

10.14 R.G Barry Corporation Deferred Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

Compensation Plan effective as of 10v to Registrants December 30 1995

September 1995 Form 10-K

10.15 Amendment No to the R.G Barry Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan 10.23 to Registrants January 2000 Form

executed March 1997 effective as of 10-K

March 1997

10.16 Amendment No to the R.G Barry Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan 10.21 to Registrants December 29 2001

executed March 28 2000 effective as of Form 10-K

December 1999

Management contract or compensatory

plan or arrangement

E-4
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10.18

10.19

10.20

10.2

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

Amendment No to the R.G Barry

Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan

executed October 31 2001 effective as of

December 1999

Amendment No to the R.G Barry

Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan

executed February 20 2004 effective as of

February 21 2004

R.G Barry Corporation 1997 Incentive

Stock Plan as amended

Form of Stock Option Agreement used in

connection with the grant of incentive stock

options pursuant to the R.G Barry

Corporation 1997 Incentive Stock Plan

Form of Stock Option Agreement used in

connection with the grant
of non-qualified

stock options pursuant to the R.G Barry

Corporation 1997 Incentive Stock Plan

R.G Barry Corporation 2002 Stock

Incentive Plan

Form of Stock Option Agreement used in

connection with grant of incentive stock

options pursuant to the R.G Barry

Corporation 2002 Stock hicentive Plan

Form of Stock Option Agreement used in

connection with grant of non-qualified stock

options pursuant to the Barry

Corporation 2002 Stock Incentive Plan

Fiscal 2011 R.G Barry Management Bonus

Plan

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.24 to Registrants Annual Report on Form

10-K for the fiscal year ended December 28

2002 SEC File No 001-8769Registrants

December 28 2002 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.29 to Registrants January 2004 Form

10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10 to Registrants Registration Statement on

Form S-8 filed June 18 1999 Registration

No 333-81105

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.24 to Registrants Annual Report on Form

10-K for the fiscal year ended December 30

2000 SEC File No 001-08769

Registrants December 30 2000 Form 10-

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.25 to Registrants December 30 2000

Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10 to Registrants Registration Statement on

Form S-8 filed June 14 2002 Registration

No 333-90544

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.30 to Registrants December 28 2002

Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.31 to Registrants December 28 2002

Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.37 to Registrants Annual Report on Form

10-K for the fiscal year ended July 2010

SEC File No 00 1-08769 Registrants

July 2010 Form 10-K

Management contract or compensatory

plan or arrangement

E-5



10.26 Fiscal 2012 R.G Barry Management Bonus Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

Plan 10.36 to Registrants Annual Report on Form

10-K for the fiscal year ended July 2011

SEC File No 00 1-08769 Registrants

July 2011 Form 10-K

10.27 Fiscal 2013 R.G Barry Management Bonus Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

Plan 10.29 to Registrants Annual Report on Form

10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30 2012

SEC File No 001-08769 Registrants

June 30 2012 Form 10-K

10.28 Fiscal 2014 R.G Barry Management Bonus Filed herewith

Plan

10.29 R.G Barry Corporation Board of Directors Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

Compensation Program adopted by Board 10.1 to Registrants October 2010 Form

of Directors approval at the September 10-Q

2010 meeting of the Board of Directors to

be in effect with the November 2010

Annual Meeting of Shareholders

10.30 R.G Barry Corporation Board of Directors Filed herewith

Compensation Program Summary

10.31 Change in Control Agreement between R.G Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

Barry Corporation and Jose Ibarra made to 10.1 to Registrants Current Report on Form

be effective as of January 2011 8-K dated and filed January 13 2011 SEC
File No 001-08769 Registrants January

13 2011 Form 8-K

10.32 Change in Control Agreement between R.G Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

Barry Corporation and Glenn Evans made 10.3 in Registrants January 13 2011 Form

to be effective as of January 2011 8-K

10.33 Change in Control Agreement between R.G Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

Barry Corporation and Lee Smith made to 10.2 in Registrants January 13 2011 Form

be effective as of January 2011 8-K

10.34 Change in Control Agreement between R.G Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

Barry Corporation and Yvonne Kalucis 10.44 to Registrants July 2011 Form 10-K

made to be effective as of January 2011

10.35 Key Employment Agreement between R.G Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

Barry Corporation and Dennis Eckols made 10.46 to Registrants July 2011 Form 10-K

to be effective as of April 2011

10.36 R.G Barry Corporation Amended and Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

Restated 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan 10.2 to Registrants January 2010 Form

as amended on October 29 2009 10-Q

Management contract or compensatory

plan or arrangement

E-6



Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Award

Agreement Nonqualified Stock Option

Exercise Notice and Beneficiary

Designation Form used to evidence grants

of nonqualified stock options made to

directors of Registrant under the R.G Barry

Corporation 2005 Long-Term Incentive

Plan now known as the R.G Barry

Corporation Amended and Restated 2005

Long-Term Incentive Plan

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award

Agreement used to evidence grants of

restricted stock units made to directors of

R.G Barry Corporation under the R.G

Barry Corporation 2005 Long-Term

Incentive Plan now known as the R.G

Barry Corporation Amended and Restated

2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award

Agreement used to evidence grants of

restricted stock units made to employees of

R.G Barry Corporation under the

R.G Barry Corporation 2005 Long-Term

Incentive Plan now known as the

R.G Barry Corporation Amended and

Restated 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan

Form of Performance-Based Restricted

Stock Unit Award Agreement for

Employees used to evidence grants of

restricted stock units made on September

11 2008 under the R.G Barry Corporation

2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan now
known as the R.G Barry Corporation

Amended and Restated 2005 Long-Term

Incentive Plan

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.1 to Registrants July 2005 Form l0-Q

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.1 to Registrants Current Report on Form

8-K dated May 22 2006 and filed May 23

2006 SEC File No 00 1-08769

Registrants May 23 2006 Form 8-K

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.2 to Registrants May 23 2006 Form 8-K

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.6 to Registrants Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended

December 27 2008 SEC File No 001-

08769 Registrants December 27 2008

Form 10-Q

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

Management contract or compensatory

plan or arrangement

E-7



Form of Performance-Based Restricted

Stock Unit and Performance-Based Cash

Award Agreement under the R.G Bany

Corporation Amended and Restated 2005

Long-Term Incentive Plan entered into to

evidence grant of performance-based

award of restricted stock units and

performance-based cash awards made on or

after September 26 2011

10.42 Executive Employment Agreement dated

March 30 2012 and effective on May

2012 between R.G Barry Corporation and

Greg Tunney

10.43 R.G Barry Corporation Amended and

Restated Deferral Plan effective as of

October 28 2008

10.44 R.G Barry Corporation Deferral Plan now
known as R.G Barry Corporation Amended

and Restated Deferral Plan--Directors

Notice of Eligibility and Enrollment Form

10.45 R.G Barry Corporation Deferral Plan now
known as R.G Barry Corporation Amended

and Restated Deferral Plan--Gordon Zacks

Notice of Eligibility and Enrollment Form

10.46 R.G Barry Corporation Deferral Plan now
known as R.G Barry Corporation Amended

and Restated Deferral Plan--Employees

Notice of Eligibility and Enrollment Form

Form of Employees Notice of Eligibility

related to Deferral of Restricted Stock Units

for specified calendar year under the R.G

Barry Corporation Amended and Restated

Deferral Plan

10.48 Form of R.G Barry Corporation Amended

and Restated Deferral Plan Participation

Agreement Relating to Restricted Stock

Units Granted in specified calendar year

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.3 to Registrants Quarterly Report on

Form 0-Q for the quarterly period ended

October 2011 SEC File No 001-08769

Registrants October 2011 Form 10-Q

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.3 to Registrants Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended

March 31 2012 SEC File No 001-08769

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.5 to Registrants December 27 2008

Form 10-Q

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.4 to Registrants May 23 2006 Form 8-K

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.5 to Registrants May 23 2006 Form 8-K

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.6 to Registrants May 23 2006 Form 8-K

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.55 to Registrants Annual Report on Form

10-K for the fiscal year ended June 27 2009

File No 001-8769 Registrants June 27

2009 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.56 to Registrants June 27 2009 Form 10-

10.41

10.47

Management contract or compensatory

plan or arrangement

E-8



Credit Agreement dated as of March

2011 by and between R.G Barry

Corporation and The Huntington National

Bank As filed includes all exhibits to the

Credit Agreement in their entirety

Distribution Agreement entered into as of

February 13 2009 between R.G Barry

Corporation and UTi Integrated Logistics

Inc now known as UTi Integrated

Logistics LLC

NOTE Certain portions of this Exhibit

have been omitted based upon request for

confidential treatment which was granted by

the SEC on December 2011 under

CF27572 The non-public information

was filed separately with the SEC in

connection with that request

Amendment One to Distribution

Agreement entered into as of August 22

2011 by R.G Barry Corporation and UTi

Integrated Logistics Inc and as of August

24 2011 by UTi Integrated Logistics LLC

now known as UTi Integrated Inc

NOTE Certain portions of this Exhibit

have been omitted based upon request for

confidential treatment which was granted by

the SEC on December 2011 under

CF27572 The non-public information

was filed separately with the SEC in

connection with that request

10.52 R.G Barry Corporation Amended and

Restated Rabbi Trust Agreement effective

as of August 16 2012

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.1 to Registrants Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended

April 2011 Form SEC File No 001-

08769

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.1 to Registrants October 12011 Form

10-Q

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.2 to Registrants October 12011 Form

10-Q

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.1 to Registrants Quarterly report on Form

10-Q for the quarterly period ended

September 29 2012 SEC File No 001-

08769

10.49

10.50

10.51

Management contract or compensatory

plan or arrangement

E-9



14.1 R.G Barry Corporation Code of Business Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

Conduct Ethics 14.1 to Registrants June 27 2009 Form 10-

21.1 Subsidiaries of R.G Barry Corporation Filed herewith

23.1 Consent of KPMG LLP Independent Filed herewith

Registered Public Accounting Firm

24.1 Powers of Attorney Executed by Directors Filed herewith

and Certain Executive Officers of R.G

Barry Corporation

31.1 Rule 13a 14a/15d-14a Certifications Filed herewith

Principal Executive Officer

31.2 Rule 13a 14a/15d-14a Certifications Filed herewith

Principal Financial Officer

32.1 Certifications by Principal Executive Furnished herewith

Officer and Principal Financial Officer

pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as

adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

E- 10




